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ndNotice is hereby given that the 52 Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Fauji Foods Limited will be held on
Wednesday, March 27, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. at Pearl Continental Hotel, Lahore to transact the followingbusiness:

1. To confirm theminutes of the ExtraordinaryGeneral Meeting heldon November 26, 2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2018 and the reports of the 
Directorsand theAuditors thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for ensuing period till next AGM andto fix their remuneration.

4. To transact anyother businessas may be placedbefore themeeting withpermission of theChairman.

CLOSURE OFSHARE TRANSFERBOOKS

The ShareTransfer Books of the Companywill be closed from March21, 2019 to March 27, 2019 (both days inclusive) for
thepurpose of holding the AGM.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

By Order of the Board

Brig Zahid Nawaz Mann (Retd)
Company Secretary

Lahore.
January 29, 2019

NOTES:

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a person/ representative
as proxy to attend and vote in place of member at the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at
Company's registered office duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the time of holding meeting. A
member cannot appoint more than one proxy. Attested copy of shareholder's CNIC must be attached with the proxy
form.

2. The CDC/sub account holders are required to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by Securities and
ExchangeCommissionof Pakistan contained inCircular No. 1 of 2000 dated 26 January, 2000:

(a) For attending themeeting

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall authenticate his/her identity by showing
his / her original national identitycard or original passport at the time of attending themeeting.

ii. In case of corporateentity, theBoard of Directors' resolution / power of attorney withspecimen signatureof the
nominee shall be producedat the time of meeting.

(b) For appointing proxies

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the proxy form as per the above
requirement.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the twopersons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
proxy form.

I
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iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v. In case of corporate entity, the Boardof Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signatureshall
be submitted to the Companyalong with proxy form.

3. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses to theShare Registrar of the Company, i.e.,
M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.

Consent for Video Conference Facility

Members can also avail video conference facility in Karachi and Islamabad. In this regard please fill the following and
submit to registered addressof theCompany 10 daysbefore holding the general meeting.

If theCompany receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10%or more shareholding residing at geographical
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company
will arrange video conference facility in that citysubject to availabilityof such facility in that city.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of
general meetingalongwith complete information necessary to enable themto access such facility.

Signature of member

(Signatures and names of the Chief Executive and Directors)

I/We,_________________________________________ of ________________________, being a member of Fauji

Foods Limited, holder of ____________________ Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio / CDC Account No

__________________ herebyopt for video conference facility at __________________.



The Board of Directors' of Fauji Foods Limited are pleased to present the directors' report along with the audited financial
statements for theyear endedDecember 31, 2018.

Principal activities:

Fauji Foods Limited, a majority owned Company of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (50.59% shareholding) and Fauji
Foundation (12.75 % shareholding) is engaged in processing and marketing of dairy products, juices and jams. The
Company'sbrand 'Nurpur' is oneof theoldest and highly recognizablebrand in Pakistan.

Operations during the year:

The Company remained on course of its growth strategy and commitment towards excellence and continued to achieve
numerous milestones, still theyear under review remains a mix of good and not so good events for Dairy Industry that had
an impact on Company operational and financial performance.

The Operational results of the Company grew on improved milk processing, efficient capacity utilization, enhanced
product distribution and brand presence. The addition of new Tea Whitener brands like TAZA along with re-branding and
re-packaging of its premier pasteurized milk as Doodh, theCompany continued to deliver its promise to the consumers of
providingqualitydairy products, andalsohelp complimenting sales growth.

On the external front, The Company also faced adverse impact in UHT milk segment due to Honorable Supreme Court
order on packaged UHT milk at the start of the year. On subsequent retesting of the milk the Honorable Supreme Court
reversed the said order, in favor of the Company. Impact of that order still felt on UHT sales over the remaining year.
Overall dairy sector growth also declined due to negative perception created in the media about packaged milk and Tea
Whiteners.

Despite these tough conditions the Company has continued to capture and improve its market share. The net turnover
during theyear 2018 recordedagrowth of 16%compared with2017.

Consolidation of classes of shares:

In the 51st Annual General Meeting held on March 26, 2018, Member's approved through special resolution merging of
voting and non-voting shares of the Company into one class and increased authorized capital to 700,000,000 ordinary
sharesof Rs10 each.

Financial performance:

The Company achieved turnover of Rs. 8,094 million compared to Rs. 7,000 million in the comparative year. Loss after
taxation in the reported year is Rs. 2,849 million as compared to Rs. 2,288 million in the comparative year. The Loss per
Share thereby isRs. 5.39as compared withRs. 9.22 in thecomparativeyear.

The increase in net losses aredue to higher cost incurred in relation to input costs of raw materialsowing to fluctuations in
foreigncurrencyexchange rates, and finance costs owing to increase inpolicy rate by theState Bank of Pakistan.

Moreover, inability of Industry and Company to increase pricesof certain products despite increase in its processing cost,
including impact of change in Input costs and additional Regulatory Duty and high availability of low priced loose milk
through informalsector alsocontributed to losses.

Management has undertaken various initiatives like efficient management of input costs, increasing production scales,
securing new working capital lines, etc. We expect that these steps together with increased sales will contribute
significantly towards theprofitability of the Company in the future.

Acquisition intent by Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial Group Company Limited 

OnJuly 31, 2018, Inner MongoliaYili Industrial (Yili), a Chinese state owned corporation showed its interest in acquisition
of 51% stake in Fauji Foods Limited. Fauji group management and other party has commenced legal and due diligence
formalities in this regard. Management will keep apprising all stakeholders of developments in this matter through prompt
StockExchangeannouncements.

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Futureoutlook:

Pakistan's economy continues to grow positively, ledby growth in themanufacturing and services sectors andrecovery in
agricultural sector. Higher domestic demand and improvement in China Pakistan Economic Corridor backed
infrastructural development is expected to provide further impetus to the growth momentum. In the coming period,
expected rebounds in the commodity prices, weakening of the local currency, change in policy rate by the SBP may exert
momentary pressure, however, the general outlook of Pakistan's economyremains positive

Board confidence remains high in the growth potential of Pakistan's dairy market. Dairy industry is expected to recover
from negative campaign and it is expected to show growth in the future and regain the market share lost to loose milk
segment.

The Board is also confident about the future growth of the Company to deliver quality products while keeping a strong
focus on innovation and operational excellence. Current capacity enhancement will enable it to contribute as key market
player of thedairy industry. Company will continue to focus on improving shareholders' value through innovation, product
andprocess optimization, effectivecost controls andwill continue to grow its market share In ShaALLAH.

Principle risks and uncertainties facing company:

Risks faced by theCompany arenot significantly different fromrisks posed to other companies working in thedairy sector.
The recent and sudden devaluation of currency along with changes in Regulatory and Revenue Regimes by the
Government, has exposed theCompany toForeign Exchange Riskand Regulatory Risks. TheManagement andBoard is
well aware of the associated Risks and has taken steps to mitigate the same. Apart from the above said Risks, there are
no significant risk and uncertainties posed to the business and operations of the Company, except as disclosed in the
Contingencies andCommitment notes to the financial statements.

Transaction with related parties:

The Company carries out transactions with related parties and amounts, due from and to, related parties as shown under
respective heads are carried out at arms' length. Except as disclosed in financial statements, no other transactions were
executedwith relatedparties.

Corporate and financial reporting framework:

- The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of
its operations, cash flowand changes in equity.

- Proper booksof accountsof theCompanyhave been maintained.

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment except for those as disclosed in the financial 
statements.

- International financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements.

- The systemof internal controls issound in design andhasbeen effectively implementedand monitored.

- There areno significant doubts upon theCompany'sability to continue as a 'going concern'.

- There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on
December 31, 2018 except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

- The value of investments of staff provident fund, based on un-audited accounts, was Rs.329 million as at December
31, 2018.

- The Boardhasapproved the remuneration policyof non-executive directors including independent directors.

- The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is included in this annual
report.

19
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II. Mutual Funds:
1. CDC - Trustee ABL Income Fund - MT
2. CDC - Trustee ABL Stock Fund
3. CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund
4. CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Islamic Dedicated Equity Fund 
5. CDC - Trustee Faysal Asset Allocation Fund
6. CDC - Trustee Faysal MTS Fund - MT
7. CDC - Trustee Faysal Savings Growth Fund - MT
8. CDC - Trustee Faysal Stock Fund
9. CDC - Trustee First Dawood Mutual Fund
10. CDC - Trustee First Habib Income Fund - MT
11. CDC - Trustee Lakson Equity Fund
12. CDC - Trustee Lakson Tactical Fund
13. CDC - Trustee MCB DCF Income Fund
14. CDC - Trustee Nafa Multi Asset Fund
15. CDC - Trustee Unit Trust of Pakistan
16. CDC - Trustee Nafa Asset Allocation Fund
17. MC FSL Trustee JS - Income Fund

295,000
23,500
11,000
24,500

100,000
800,500

1,000
175,000
47,000

211,000
3,524,900

706,900
40,500

254,000
51,500

438,000
246,500

0.0558
0.0044
0.0021
0.0046
0.0189
0.1515
0.0002
0.0331
0.0089
0.0399
0.6671
0.1338
0.0077
0.0481
0.0097
0.0829
0.0466

No. of Shares Held Percentage
III. Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children:

1. Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani (Retd) 1 0.0000
2. Lt Gen Javed Iqbal (Retd) 4 0.0000
3. Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd) 1 0.0000
4. Dr. Nadeem Inayat 16 0.0000
5. Mr. Rehan Laiq 1 0.0000
6. Mr. Salman Hayat Noon 20,568,056 3.8925
7. Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd) 4 0.0000
8. Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) 48 0.0000
9. Mr. Iltifat Rasul Khan 16 0.0000
10. Mr. Par Soderlund 16 0.0000
11. Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti 1 0.0000
12. Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer 1 0.0000

IV. Executives:
1. Syed Aamir Ahsan 800,000 0.1514

V. Public Sector companies & Corporations: Nil Nil

VI. Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and
Pension Funds: 1,640,072 0.310 4

VII. Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company:

Committee of Admin. Fauji Foundation 67,371,916 12.7500
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 267,314,886 50.5888

1.
2.
3. Malik Adnan Hayat Noon 36,315,796 6.8727

Details of trade in the shares of the Company carried-out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary and their spouse and minor children during the year ended December 31, 2018 is as
follows:

Shares held by: No. of Shares Held Percentage
I. Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties:

1. Committee of Admin. Fauji Foundation
2. Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
3. Trustee Noon Pakistan Limited Staff Provident Fund

67,371,916
267,314,886

8,560,700

12.7500
50.5888

1.6201
4. Trustee Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd. Emp. Gratuity Fund 

Trustee Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd. Provident Fund 5.
6,421,500

21,606,000
1.2153
4.0889



Brig Rizwan Rafi (Retd) (Company Secretary) - resigned on July 02, 2018)
15,000 68,000
68,000 -

Malik Adnan Hayat Noon (resigned on April 12, 2018 as director)
6,197,500 -

Non-Voting Shares Converted into Ordinary Shares 5,202,613 -

7,699,000 -

/CFO) (retired on Nov 26, 2018 as director)
500,000 300,000

Voting Non-Voting

• Sold through PSX
•

Mr. Salman Hayat Noon (Director)
• Sold through PSX

Syed Aamir Ahsan (Director
Purchased through PSX

Voting Shares Converted into Ordinary Shares 300,000 -
•
• Non-

Purchased through PSX
Non-Voting Shares Converted into Ordinary Shares

Board of Directors / Committees meeting during the year 2018:
meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:Five

Name of Directors

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani (Retd) - elected on November 26, 2018 5
Lt Gen Javed Iqbal (Retd) - elected on November 26, 2018 5
Lt Gen Shafqaat Ahmed (Retd) - resigned on March 26, 2018 1
Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd) - elected on November 26, 2018 3
Mr Qaiser Javed - retired on November 26, 2018 4
Dr Nadeem Inayat - re-elected on November 26, 2018 5
Dr Rashid Bajwa - retired on November 26, 2018 4
Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd) 5
Mr. Rehan Laiq 

- elected on November 26, 2018
- elected on November 26, 2018 1

Malik Adnan Hayat Noon - resigned on April 12, 2018 0
Mr Salman Hayat Noon 1
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) 5
Mr Iltifat Rasul Khan 4
Mr Par Soderlund 5
Syed Aamir Ahsan 1
Mr Basharat Ahmad Bhatti 

- re-elected on November 26, 2018
- re-elected on November 26, 2018
- re-elected on November 26, 2018
- re-elected on November 26, 2018
- retired on November 26, 2018
- elected on November 26, 2018 1

Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer - elected on November 26, 2018 1

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:

No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Name of Directors

4
4
3
1
3

Mr Iltifat Rasul Khan
Mr Qaiser Javed
Dr Nadeem Inayat 
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) (Alternate Director for Malik Adnan Hayat Noon)
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Mr. Rehan Laiq 1

No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Three meetings of the HR&R Committee were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended
3
1
2
2
1
1

Dr Nadeem Inayat 
Dr Rashid Bajwa
Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd)
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Mr Par Soderlund
Mr Rehan Laiq
Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer 1

•
•
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Auditors:

Thepresent auditors, M/s KPMGTaseer Hadi & Co., CharteredAccountants will retire and being eligible offer themselves
for re-appointment as thestatutoryauditors of theCompany. TheBoard Audit Committeeand theBoardof Directorsof the
Companyhave endorsed the recommendation.

Compliancewith theCode of Corporate Governance:

The requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017, relevant for the year
endedDecember 31, 2018, have beenduly compliedwith. Astatement to thiseffect is annexedwith the report.

Dividend:

TheBoardhas not recommended anydividend due to loss to theCompanyduring the year.

Annual General Meeting:

ndThe 52 Annual General Meeting will be held on March 27, 2019 at 1100 hours at Lahore to approve annual financial
statements of the Company for theyear endedDecember 31, 2018.

Acknowledgement:

The Board is thankful to the valuable shareholders and financial institutions for their trust and continued support to the 
Company. The Board would also like to place on record its appreciation to all employees of the Company for their
dedication, diligenceandhard work.

Five meetings of the Technical Committee were held. Attendance by each director is as follows: 
Name of Directors

5
3
5

Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd)
Dr Rashid Bajwa
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Mr Basharat Ahmad Bhatti 1

meetings of the Business Review Committee were held. Attendance by each director is as follows:Five

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended

No. of Meeting(s) Attended

4
4
1
5
0
1
1

Dr Rashid Bajwa
Dr Nadeem Inayat 
Mr Salman Hayat Noon
Mr Par Soderlund
Syed Aamir Ahsan
Mr Rehan Laiq
Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer

For and on behalf of the Board

Dated: January 29, 2019

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani 
HI(M), (Retd)
Chairman

Lt Gen Javed Iqbal
HI(M), (Retd)
Chief Executive and Managing Director 
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Category Names

Mr Par Soderlund
Independent Directors Mr Iltifat Rasul Khan

Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer
Mr Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

Executive Director

Non-Executive Directors

Lt Gen Javed Iqbal (Retd) 

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani (Retd) 
Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd)
Mr Rehan Laiq
Dr Nadeem Inayat
Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd)
Mr Salman Hayat Noon
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)

Name of Company: Fauji Foods Limited
Year ended: December 31, 2018 

TheCompany hascompliedwith the requirements of theRegulations in the followingmanner:

1. The total number of directors are 12 as per the following: 

a. Male: 11
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows: 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including
thisCompany.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout theCompany along with its supporting policiesand procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with thedates on which they were approvedor
amendedhasbeen maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board/shareholders asempowered by the relevant provisions of theAct and these Regulations.

7. Themeetings of theBoardwere presided over by the Chairmanand, in hisabsence, by a director elected by theBoard
for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording andcirculating minutesof meeting of Board.

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with theAct and these Regulationswhichhas beenapproved inBOD meeting held on 29 January, 2019.

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 
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Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani (Retd)
Lt Gen Javed Iqbal (Retd)
Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd)
Dr Nadeem Inayat
Mr Rehan Laiq
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) 
Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer
Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd)

10.

11. CFO and CEOduly endorsed the financial statements beforeapproval of theBoard.

12. The Boardhas formed committees comprisingof membersgiven below:

During the year the Board has approved appointment of Company Secretary including his remuneration and terms
and conditions of employment while there is no change in the CFO and Head of Internal Audit and all complied with
relevant requirements of theRegulations.

(Director/Chairman)
(Director/ CE&MD)
(Director)
(Director)
(Director)
(Director)
(Director)
(Director)

BUSINESS REVIEW COMMITTEE

Mr Par Soderlund 
Dr Nadeem Inayat
Mr Rehan Laiq
Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer

(Chairman)
(Member)
(Member)
(Member)

13. The terms of reference of the audit committee and human resource committee have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance and terms of reference of business review committee and technical
committee have been formed, documented andareunder review of the Board.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr Iltifat Rasul Khan 
Dr Nadeem Inayat
Mr Rehan Laiq
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)

(Chairman)
(Member)
(Member)
(Member)

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

Ms Aminah Zahid Zaheer 
Dr Nadeem Inayat
Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd)
Mr Rehan Laiq

(Chairperson)
(Member)
(Member)
(Member)

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Brig Raashid Wali Janjua (Retd) 
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Mr Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

(Chairman)
(Member)
(Member)

a) Audit Committee: 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee:
c) Business Review Committee: 
d) Technical Committee: 

No.

5
3
5
5

Frequency

Quarterly
Half yearly
Quarterly
Quarterly

9. The Board has arranged Directors' Training program for the following: 
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15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function staffed with persons who are suitably qualified and
experienced for thepurpose andarewell conversant with thepolicies andprocedures of thecompany.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of
the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all
its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed
that theyhave observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirmthat allother requirements of theRegulationshave been compliedwith.

Lt Gen Javed Iqbal
HI(M), (Retd)
Chief Executive and Managing Director

Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani
HI(M), (Retd)
Chairman

Dated:  January 29, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board
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December
2018

December
2017

December
2016

December
2015

June
2015

June
 2014

Production
Liquid Production - litres 90,295,898 86,699,115 37,252,653 8,737,421
Non - Liquid Products - Kgs 1,778,587 725,221 5,415,745 245,568 992,377 1,339,371

Financial Performance - Profitability

Gross profit margin % 4.73 2.79 3.13 (0.18) 8.23 9.31
EBITDA margin to sales % (32.57) (29.67) (34.82) (14.04) (14.67) (0.10)
Pre tax margin % (40.92) (43.08) (45.04) (25.68) (22.54) (5.51)
Net profit margin % (35.20) (32.68) (28.69) (15.39) (18.74) (6.47)
Return on equity % (396.78) (65.63) (53.68) (47.26) (273.32) (338.18)
Return on capital employed % (54.80) (28.46) (50.07) (64.43) (279.42) (34.68)

Operating Performance / Liquidity

Total assets turnover Times 0.60 0.59 0.44 0.36 1.18 1.55
Fixed assets turnover Times 1.02 1.03 0.68 0.54 17.98 3.77
Trade Debtors Rs. (000) 124,573 129,705 77,969 37,730 38,626 221,612
Debtors turnover Times 64 67 58 18 14 11
Debtors turnover Days 6 5 6 10 25 33
Inventory Rs. (000) 1,380,401 1,021,156 684,806 174,626 158,126 62,365
Inventory turnover Times 6 8 8 4 16 29
Inventory turnover Days 57 46 48 44 23 12
Purchases Rs. (000) 6,226,498 5,403,562 2,717,812 546,844 1,403,509 1,804,615
Accounts Payables Rs. (000) 898,415 438,319 1,008,155 310,130 293,433 437,996
Creditors turnover Times 9 7 4 2 4 4
Creditors turnover Days 39 49 89 102 95 95
Operating cycle Days 23 2 (34) (47) (46) (50)
Return on assets % (21.02) (19.22) (12.59) (5.56) (22.09) (10.01)
Current ratio 0.58 1.70 0.40 0.34 0.44 0.87
Quick / Acid test ratio 0.36 1.22 0.25 0.21 0.35 0.67

Capital Market / Capital Structure Analysis

Market value per share
   - Year end Rs. 30.28 16.46 88.67 242.21 79.99 35.58
   - High during the year Rs. 41.98 124.4 314.00 366.62 87.99 35.69
   - Low during the year Rs. 15.61 14.75 71.51 71.84 27.19 34.91
Breakup value - (Net assets / share) Rs. 1.36 6.60 13.63 (7.16) (4.08) 3.01

- excluding revaluation surplus Rs. (000) 718,098 3,486,422 1,801,184 (224,450) (127,970) 42,006
- including revaluation surplus Rs. (000) 2,142,476 4,945,390 2,241,540 233,165 335,309 89,610

Earning per share (pre tax) Rs. (6) (12.15) (13.74) (1.78) (14.13) (8.67)
Earning per share (after tax) Rs. (5.39) (9.22) (8.75) (1.07) (11.75) (10.19)
Earnings growth % 41.50 (5.33) (718.22) 90.90 (15.26) 11.01
Price earning ratio (5.62) (1.79) (10.13) (226.48) (6.81) (3.49)
Market price to breakup value 22.28 2.49 6.50 (33.84) (19.60) 11.81
Debt : Equity 13.75 1.73 2.26 (5.34) (6.26) 18.15
Interest cover (3.79) (6.45) (9.06) (3.34) (4.03) (1.01)

20,458,745 23,648,085

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
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Statement of affairs

Share capital
Reserves
Share holder's fund / Equity
Revaluation surplus
Long term borrowings
Capital employed
Deferred liabilities/(assets)
Property, plant & equipment
Long term assets
Net current assets / Working capital
Liquid funds - net

Financial Performance

Sales - net
Gross profit
Operating Loss
Loss before tax
Loss after tax
EBITDA

Summary of Cash Flows

Net cash flow from operating activities
Net cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities
Changes in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents - Year end

Rs. (000) 5,284,072 5,284,072 1,321,017 313,632 313,632 139,392
Rs. (000) (4,565,974) (1,797,650) 480,166 (538,082) (441,602) (97,386)
Rs. (000) 718,098 3,486,422 1,801,184 (224,450) (127,970) 42,006
Rs. (000) 1,424,378 1,458,968 440,356 457,615 463,279 47,604
Rs. (000) 4,480,940 4,553,055 129,919 59,828 2,796 367,648
Rs. (000) 5,199,038 8,039,476 1,931,103 (164,622) (125,174) 409,654
Rs. (000) (1,571,537) (1,061,248) (628,542) (76,385) (1,598) -
Rs. (000) 7,953,144 6,822,274 4,937,751 1,277,998 1,037,778 576,928
Rs. (000) 9,584,783 7,901,844 5,571,678 1,356,031 1,041,410 581,217
Rs. (000) (2,875,200) 1,652,214 (3,167,397) (1,052,409) (703,304) (123,958)
Rs. (000) 98,221 1,195,302 333,540 52,960 141,057 218,123

Rs. (000) 8,094,123 7,000,955 3,370,507 689,044 1,866,019 2,194,025
Rs. (000) 383,103 195,125 105,506 (1,259) 153,529 204,246
Rs. (000) (2,558,541) (2,570,226) (1,367,004) (136,121) (336,916) (60,605)
Rs. (000) (3,312,388) (3,016,286) (1,517,940) (176,931) (420,600) (120,857)
Rs. (000) (2,849,239) (2,288,262) (966,920) (106,073) (349,763) (142,055)
Rs. (000) (2,636,001) (2,077,150) (1,173,689) (96,723) (273,733) (2,168)

Rs. (000) (2,539,892) (3,597,667) (1,573,454) (185,336) (201,730) (56,340)
Rs. (000) (1,456,341) (1,050,585) (3,862,420) (281,007) (9,486) 15,750
Rs. (000) (292,430) 6,159,323 4,205,063 292,139 134,148 178,322
Rs. (000) (4,288,663) 1,511,072 (1,230,810) (174,204) (77,067) 137,733
Rs. (000) (4,542,863) (254,200) (1,765,272) (534,461) 141,057 218,124

December
2018

December
2017

December
2016

December
2015

June
2015

June
 2014
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Shareholdings No. of 
Shareholders From To

Total
Shares Held

1
101
501

1,001
5,001

10,001
15,001
20,001
25,001
30,001
35,001
40,001
45,001
50,001
55,001
60,001
65,001
70,001
75,001
80,001
85,001
90,001
95,001

100,001
105,001
110,001
115,001
120,001
125,001
130,001
135,001
140,001

100
500

1,000
5,000

10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
45,000
50,000
55,000
60,000
65,000
70,000
75,000
80,000
85,000
90,000
95,000

100,000
105,000
110,000
115,000
120,000
125,000
130,000
135,000
140,000
145,000

41,132
510,972
995,564

6,317,098
5,530,069
3,161,736
2,949,424
2,077,053
1,758,607
1,496,820
1,712,136
1,084,944
1,729,216

787,619
1,003,724

829,748
816,003

1,190,500
1,491,075

331,000
532,802
92,500

2,596,000
926,534
759,500
570,500
707,168
368,000
510,900
533,900
558,500
430,000

831
1143
1031
2192
689
248
159
89
62
45
44
25
35
15
17
13
12
16
19
4
6
1

26
9
7
5
6
3
4
4
4
3

2.2

FORM 34

1.1 Name of the Company FAUJI FOODS LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 31-12-2018

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Incorporation No.: 0002355
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Shareholdings No. of 
Shareholders From To

Total
Shares Held

145,001
150,001
155,001
160,001
165,001
170,001
175,001
180,001
185,001
190,001
195,001
200,001
205,001
210,001
215,001
220,001
230,001
235,001
240,001
245,001
250,001
260,001
265,001
275,001
285,001
290,001
295,001
305,001
310,001
315,001
345,001
350,001
375,001
395,001
420,001
425,001
435,001
440,001
445,001
455,001
460,001
465,001
495,001

150,000
155,000
160,000
165,000
170,000
175,000
180,000
185,000
190,000
195,000
200,000
205,000
210,000
215,000
220,000
225,000
235,000
240,000
245,000
250,000
255,000
265,000
270,000
280,000
290,000
295,000
300,000
310,000
315,000
320,000
350,000
355,000
380,000
400,000
425,000
430,000
440,000
445,000
450,000
460,000
465,000
470,000
500,000

892,500
1,075,240

794,240
651,500
338,400
175,000
180,000
185,000
187,000
192,072

1,799,800
1,011,500

210,000
635,632
220,000
674,000
694,500
236,000
488,000
996,500
505,500
265,000
536,000
280,000
289,500
295,000
600,000
610,666
314,000
640,000
700,000
705,360
377,000
800,000
425,000
426,500
876,500
444,000
450,000
458,684

1,384,500
470,000
496,000

7
5
4
2
1
1
1
1
1
9
5
1
3
1
3
3
1
2
4
2
1
2
1
1
1
2
2
1
2
2
2
1
2
1
1
2
1
1
1
3
1
1

6
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1 515,001 520,000 519,000
1 605,001 610,000 610,000
1 615,001 620,000 620,000
1 705,001 710,000 706,900
1 725,001 730,000 728,000
1 775,001 780,000 779,000
1 795,001 800,000 800,000
1 800,001 805,000 800,500
1 880,001 885,000 883,000
1 900,001 905,000 900,500
1 935,001 940,000 936,000
2 990,001 995,000 1,982,500
2 995,001 1,000,000 2,000,000
1 1,350,001 1,355,000 1,352,400
1 1,730,001 1,735,000 1,730,500
1 2,065,001 2,070,000 2,070,000
1 2,300,001 2,305,000 2,301,000
1 3,515,001 3,520,000 3,519,248
1 3,520,001 3,525,000 3,524,900
1 5,745,001 5,750,000 5,747,500
1 6,420,001 6,425,000 6,421,500
1 7,415,001 7,420,000 7,420,000
1 8,555,001 8,560,000 8,558,580
1 18,265,001 18,270,000 18,267,056
1 21,605,001 21,610,000 21,606,000
1 30,550,001 30,555,000 30,552,468
1 67,370,001 67,375,000 67,371,916
1 267,310,001 267,315,000 267,311,886

6,892 528,407,192

Shareholdings No. of 
Shareholders From To

Total
Shares Held

2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage

20,568,165 3.8925%

371,275,002 70.2630%

         and their spouse and minor children
  Directors, Chief Executive Officers,

  Associated Companies,
         undertakings and related
         parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.1

2.3.2

32



Share held Percentage

940,500 0.1780%

693,572 0.1313%

6,956,800 1.3166%

334,686,802 63.3388%

113,251,812 21.4327%
41,000 0.0078%

12,905,816 2.4424%
1,357,400 0.2569%

406,876 0.0770%

 Others (to be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies
2- Foreign Companies
3- Other Companies

  Banks Development
         Financial Institutions, Non
         Banking Financial Institutions.

  Insurance Companies

  Modarabas and Mutual
         Funds

  Share holders holding 10%
         or more

  General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

10,249 0.0019%  NIT and ICP2.3.3

2.3.4

2.3.5

2.3.6

2.3.7

2.3.8

2.3.9

3. Signature of Company Secretary

4. Name of Signatory

5. Designation

6. CNIC Number

7. Date

Brig Zahid Nawaz Mann (Retd)

Company Secretary

35402-1897498-9

December 31, 2018
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Fauji Foods Limited
(“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and reviewof various documents
preparedby the Company to complywith theRegulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether theBoard of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion
on theeffectiveness of such internal controls, theCompany's corporategovernanceprocedures andrisks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also 
ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of theAudit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine
the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length priceor not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
theRegulations as applicable to theCompany for the year ended31 December 2018.

Lahore

Date: January 30, 2019 
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(Bilal Ali)

To the members of Fauji Foods Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance 

contained in Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
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Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Fauji Foods Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
andbelief, werenecessary for thepurposesof theaudit.

Basis forOpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
Webelieve that theaudit evidencewehave obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

KeyAudit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as awhole, and in formingour opinion thereon, and wedo not providea separateopinion on these matters.

Followingare the Keyaudit matters:

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial
position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectivelygive a true and fair view of thestate of the Company'saffairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the
loss, thecomprehensive loss, thechanges in equityand its cash flows for theyear then ended.

Sr.
No.

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Goingconcern

Refer note1.1 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company has incurred net loss after tax
of Rs. 2,849.24 million and as of this date
current liabilities have exceeded its current 
assets by Rs. 2,875.20 million and the
a c c u m u l a t e d l o s s e s s t a n d a t
Rs. 6.491.31million.

The management of the Company made
their assessment of going concern by
preparing a cash flow forecast in which
some key assumptions were applied.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:

• assessing and challenging, through involving our own
specialist, the key assumptions used by management in the
cash flow forecast relating to projected growth rate, future
selling prices and production volumes used and evaluating
whether there wereany indicatorsof management bias;

• comparing the cash flow forecast prepared in the prior year
with the current year's performance of the Company to
assess the reasonableness of the prior year's cash flow
forecast and making enquiries of management as to the
reasons for anysignificant variations identified;

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
To the members of Fauji Foods Limited

 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Sr.
No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

These key assumptions included forecasts
of sales volumes, average selling prices,
raw material costs and necessary capital
expenditure for productsand the availability
of banking and other financing facilities
including financial support from the parent
company.

We iden ti f ied the going concern
assessment as a key audit matter because
there are events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. A significant
degree of management judgement is
involved in making this assessment and in
forecasting the future cash flows of the
Companywhichare inherentlyuncertain.

• assessing the availability of banking and other financing
facilities during the forecast period by inspecting contracts or
agreements signed with banks and other financial facilities
up-to date of approval of financial statements and assessing
their adequacy to meet the Company's needs in the context
of cash flowforecast; and

• assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting andreportingstandards.

2. Recognitionof deferredtax asset

Refer notes 4.2 and 19 to the financial
statements.

The Company has recognised deferred tax 
asset on unused tax lossesand tax credits.

The recoverability of recognised deferred
tax asset is dependent on the Company's
ability to generate future taxable profits
sufficient to utilise deductible temporary
differences and tax losses (before the latter
expire).

We have determined this to be a key audit
matter, due to the inherent uncertainty in
forecasting the amount and timing of future
taxable profitsand the reversal of temporary
differences.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:

• assessing the appropriateness of the Company's accounting
policy for recognition of deferred taxation and compliance of
the policy with applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

• assessing the reasonableness of future taxable profits and
recoverability of tax losses recognized by evaluating
historical forecasting accuracy and comparing the
assumptions, such as projected growth rates, future selling
prices and production volumes and their consistency with
cash flow forecast used for the purpose of evaluating going
concern assumption including involving our own specialist to
assist us in evaluating the assumptions and judgements
adopted by management in its business plan (as the basis for
future taxable profits) to assess the reversals of recognized 
deferred taxasset; and

assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accountingand reportingstandards.

Sales

Refer to note 4.20 and 27 to the financial
statements.

The Company principally generates
revenue from processing and sale of toned
milk, milk powder, fruit juices, allied dairy
and food products.

3. Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:
• Obtaining an understanding of the process relating to

recording of sales and testing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of relevant key internal controls
over recordingof sales;

• assessing theappropriateness of the Company's accounting
policy for recording of sales and compliance of the policywith
applicable accountingstandards;
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No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because it is one of the key
performance indicator of the Company and
gives rise to an inherent risk of
misstatement to meet expectations or
targets.

• comparing a sample of sale transactions recorded during the
year with sales orders, sales invoices, delivery challans and
other relevant underlying documents;

• comparing a sample of sale transactions recorded near the
year end with the sales orders, sales invoices, delivery
challans and other relevant underlying documentation to
assess if thesale was recorded in theappropriate accounting
period;

• inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes issuednear to and
subsequent to year end to evaluate whether the adjustments
to sales had been accurately recorded in the appropriate
accounting period; and
scanning for any manual journal entries relating to sales
recorded during and near the year end which were
considered to be material or met other specific risk based
criteria for inspectingunderlying documentation.

Capitalization of property, plant and
equipment

Refer notes 4.10 and 17 to the financial
statements.

The Company has made significant capital
expenditureon expansion of manufacturing
facilities.

We identified capitalization of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because there is a risk that amounts being 
capitalized may not meet the capitalization 
criteria with related implications on
depreciationcharge for the year.

4. Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:

• obtaining an understanding of and testing the design,
implementation and operating effect iveness of
management'skey internal control over capital expenditure;

• testing, on sample basis, the costs incurred on projects with
supportingdocumentation andcontracts;

• assessing thenatureof costs incurred for thecapital projects
for appropriateness by comparing, on sample basis,
amounts recorded with underlying documentation and
considering that the expenditure meets the criteria for
capitalization as per the applicable accounting standards;
and

• inspecting supporting documents for the date of
capitalization when project assets were ready for its
intended use to assess that depreciation commenced and
further capitalization of costs ceased from that date and to
assess the useful life assigned by management including
testing thecalculation of relateddepreciation.

Valuation of stock in trade

Refer notes 4.13 and 21 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's
gross carrying amount of stock-in trade
amounts to Rs. 1,401.18 million against
which net realizable value adjustment of
Rs. 12.95 millionhas beenrecorded.

5. Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the following:

• assessing the appropriateness of Company's accounting
policy for valuation of stock in trade and compliance of the
policywithapplicable accountingand reportingstandards;

• obtainingan understanding of internal controls over valuation
of stock in trade and testing, on a sample basis, their design,
implementationandoperating effectiveness;
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No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

We identifiedvaluationof stock in trade as a
key audit matter as it involves significant
management judgment in determining the
carrying value of stock in trade.

• obtaining an understanding and assessing reasonableness
of the management's determination of net realizable value
(NRV) and the key estimates adopted, including future
selling prices, future costs to complete work-in-progress and
costs necessary tomake the salesand their basis; and

comparing the NRV, on a sample basis, to the cost of stock in
trade to assess whether any adjustments are required to the
value of stock in trade in accordance with the accounting
policy.

InformationOther than theFinancial Statementsand Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included in the annual
report for theyear ended 31 December 2018, but doesnot include the financial statements andour auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
theaudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, basedon thework we have performed, weconclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, weare required to report that fact. Wehave nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilitiesof Management andBoard of Directors for theFinancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing theCompany's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Companyor to ceaseoperations, or has no realisticalternative but to do so.

Boardof directorsare responsible for overseeing theCompany's financial reportingprocess.

Auditor's Responsibilities for theAudit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticismthroughout theaudit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

(XIX of 2017)
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lahore

Date: January 30, 2019 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If weconclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timingof the audit
andsignificant audit findings, includingany significant deficiencies in internal control that we identifyduringour audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and whereapplicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on OtherLegal andRegulatoryRequirements

Basedon our audit, we further report that inour opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by theCompany as required by theCompanies Act, 2017(XIXof 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, thestatement of profit or loss, thestatement of comprehensive income, thestatement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
with theCompanies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) andare inagreement with thebooksof account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company'sbusiness; and

d) Nozakat was deductibleat source under theZakat andUshr Ordinance, 1980 (XVlII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Bilal Ali.
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The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2018
Rupees

7,000,000,000

5,284,071,920
1,925,340,907

(6,491,314,836)

1,424,377,761
2,142,475,752

4,191,666,667
289,272,895

86,167,817
4,567,107,379

403,631,987
4,991,083,521
1,255,264,861

965,752
195,648,668

6,846,594,789

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Share premium
Accumulated loss

Surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment - net of tax

Non-current liabilities

Long term finances - secured
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Employee retirement benefits

Current liabilities

Current portion of long term liabilities
Short term borrowings - secured
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued finance cost

Contingencies and commitments

Note

6

6
7

8

9
10
11

12

13
14

15

16
13,556,177,920

2017
Rupees

(Restated)

7,000,000,000

5,284,071,920
1,925,340,907

(3,722,990,539)

1,458,968,052
4,945,390,340

4,450,000,000
103,054,926
55,612,612

4,608,667,538

38,582,834
1,449,501,368

790,781,111
970,179

73,373,064
2,353,208,556

11,907,266,434

2016
Rupees

(Restated)

7,000,000,000

1,321,017,980
1,966,772,143

(1,486,605,671)

440,355,621
2,241,540,073

-
129,919,028

32,822,224
162,741,252

36,097,751
3,899,251,334
1,290,330,605

973,104
49,716,962

5,276,369,756

7,680,651,081

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018
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The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2017 2016
Rupees Rupees

(Restated) (Restated)

6,822,273,698 4,937,750,901

17,378,388 4,441,250

944,306 944,306
1,061,247,592 628,541,639
7,901,843,984 5,571,678,096

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Security deposits
Deferred taxation - net

Note

17

18

19

11,907,266,434 7,680,651,081

2018
Rupees

7,953,143,603
59,158,143

944,306
1,571,537,380
9,584,783,432

13,556,177,920

107,134,205 93,931,361
1,021,155,966 684,805,793

129,704,758 77,969,418
75,943,368 48,480,455

489,877,664 141,347,588
1,093,586 39,247

484,343,381 475,950,146
500,867,832 252,909,058

Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Due from associated companies
Sales tax refundable - net
Income tax - net
Cash and bank balances

20
21
22
23
24
25

26 1,195,301,690 333,539,919
4,005,422,450 2,108,972,985

142,132,460
1,380,400,512

124,573,265
61,527,093

733,787,593
308,895

440,797,114
989,646,258

98,221,298
3,971,394,488

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2018
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 27 8,094,123,091 7,000,955,306

Cost of sales 28 (7,711,019,879) (6,805,830,351)

Gross profit 383,103,212 195,124,955

Marketing and distribution expenses 29 (2,475,994,745) (2,335,148,674)

Administrative expenses 30 (465,649,383) (430,201,987)

Loss from operations (2,558,540,916) (2,570,225,706)

Other income 31 17,812,359 29,356,303

Other expenses 32 (96,863,213) (77,070,802)

Finance cost 33 (674,796,714) (398,345,529)

Loss before taxation (3,312,388,484) (3,016,285,734)

Taxation 34 463,149,882 728,023,875

Loss after taxation (2,849,238,602) (2,288,261,859)

Loss per share - basic and diluted 35 (5.39) (9.22)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of Profit or Loss

42



For the year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of Comprehensive Income

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

(Restated)

(2,849,238,602) (2,288,261,859)

(815,892) 626,647
- 1,365,180,697
- (295,317,922)

(2,850,054,494) (1,217,772,437)

Loss after taxation for the year 

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Related deferred tax on surplus

Total comprehensive loss for the year 

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
Statement of Changes In Equity

1,321,017,980 1,966,772,143 - (1,486,605,671) 1,801,184,452
- - 440,355,621 - 440,355,621

1,321,017,980 1,966,772,143 440,355,621 (1,486,605,671) 2,241,540,073

As at 01 January 2017 previously reported
Impact of restatement - note 4.1
As at 01 January 2017 - restated

--------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------------

Revenue reserves

Share
premium

Surplus on 
revaluation of 

property, plant 
and equipment- 

net of tax

Accumulated
loss

Issued,
subscribed and 

paid-up
capital

Total

Capital Reserves

- - - (2,288,261,859) (2,288,261,859)

- - - 626,647 626,647
- - 1,365,180,697 - 1,365,180,697

- - (295,317,922) - (295,317,922)

- - 1,069,862,775 (2,287,635,212) (1,217,772,437)

- - (51,250,344) 51,250,344 -

3,963,053,940 - - - 3,963,053,940
- (41,431,236) - - (41,431,236)

3,963,053,940 (41,431,236) - - 3,921,622,704

5,284,071,920 1,925,340,907 1,458,968,052 (3,722,990,539) 4,945,390,340

- - (2,849,238,602) (2,849,238,602)

- - (815,892) (815,892)

- - (2,850,054,494) (2,850,054,494)

- (81,730,197) 81,730,197 -

-

-

-

-

-
- 47,139,906 - 47,139,906

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit  obligation
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment arisen
Related deferred tax on surplus arisen

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

Surplus transferred to accumulated losses

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus
on revaluation - net of tax

Transactions with owners of the Company

Ordinary shares issued during the year
396,305,394 share of Rs. 10 each
Expense incurred on issuance of shares

Balance as at 31 December 2017 - restated

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss after taxation

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit  obligation

Total comprehensive loss 

Surplus transferred to accumulated losses

Incremental depreciation relating to surplus
on revaluation - net of tax

Effect of change in tax rate on account of surplus
on property, plant and equipment

Balance as at 31 December 2018 5,284,071,920 1,925,340,907 1,424,377,761 (6,491,314,836) 2,142,475,752

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

17.1.6
18.1.1

31
32
20
21
31
31
32

33

(3,016,285,734)

538,749,313
2,040,639

(1,875,883)
3,777,210

(7,820,518)
(4,666,100)
28,992,565
28,370,511

398,345,529
(2,030,372,468)

(3,312,388,484)

673,735,318
2,652,249

(1,544,277)
-

3,356,101
7,831,398

(8,314,319)
-

9,108,549
32,072,757

674,796,714
(1,918,693,994)

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for obsolete stores and spares
Provision for obsolete stocks
Profit on bank deposits
Liabilities no longer payable written back
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
Employee retirement benefits
Finance cost

Loss before working capital changes
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Due from Associated Companies 
Sales tax refundable

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

(38,354,356)
(367,075,944)

5,131,493
14,416,275

(243,909,929)
784,691

43,546,267
455,375,201

(130,086,302)
(2,048,780,296)

(13,202,844)
(336,350,173)
(55,512,550)
(27,462,913)

(348,530,076)
(1,054,339)
(8,393,235)

(523,875,959)
(1,314,382,089)
(3,344,754,557)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Income tax paid
Employee benefits paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

(488,778,426)
(2,333,444)

(2,539,892,166)

(247,958,774)
(4,953,476)

(3,597,666,807)

Fixed capital expenditure
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Income on bank deposits received
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

(1,467,858,414)
3,203,291
8,314,319

(1,456,340,804)

(1,064,111,202)
5,705,995
7,820,518

(1,050,584,689)

Share capital issued - net of expenses
Proceeds from long term finances
Short term borrowings - net
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - net
Finance cost paid
Dividends paid
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

-
-
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349,999,476
(89,904,038)

(552,521,110)
(4,427)

(292,430,099)

(4,288,663,069)
(254,199,678)

(4,542,862,747)

3,921,622,704
4,450,000,000
(1,800,439,755)

(37,167,119)
(374,689,427)

(2,925)
6,159,323,478

1,511,071,982
(1,765,271,660)

(254,199,678)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

-
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1 The Company and its operations

Fauji Foods Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 26 September 1966 as a Public Company and
its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. It is principally engaged in processing and sale of toned milk, milk
powder, fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. Theregistered office of the Company is situated at FFBL Complex,
103 A/B, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore and the manufacturing facility is located at Bhalwal, District Sargodha. 
TheCompany isa subsidiaryof Fauji Fertilizer BinQasimLimited, theParent Company.

During theyear, theCompany has incurred a loss after tax of Rs. 2,849.24million and as of this date the accumulated
lossesstandsat Rs. 6,491.31 millionand its current liabilities exceeds itscurrent assetsby Rs. 2,875.20 million.

Consequent to acquisition of the Company by Fauji Group in year 2015, the management has taken various
operational measures towards transformation of the Company that includes curtailment of higher input costs,
increasing production scales to optimum levels by BMR - balancing, modernization and replacement of production 
facility amounting to Rs. 6,825 million (during the last three years), strengthening of milk collection and sales and
distribution structures. The management has also taken various financial initiatives towards improvement of liquidity
that included raising of equity finance of Rs. 6,896 million to date through right issue to support working capital and
capital expenditure requirements. Further fresh working capital lines of Rs. 1,300 million, in addition to existing linesof
Rs. 3,900.94 million, were arranged from new and existing lenders during the year to meet operational liquidity
requirements. The cash flow forecasts of the Company are showing improvements in cash generation over
subsequent periods and reduction in its accumulated losses. The Board of Directors has approved the next year
businessplan that includes financial support of Rs. 3,000 million from theParent Company for meeting thecontractual
obligations and operational liquidity of the Company for the foreseeable future for which purpose a letter of support
has been received from the Parent Company. Further, Inner Monogolia Yili Industrial Group Company Limited, a
Chinese Company a potential acquirer has expressed its intention to enter into negotiations with Fauji Fertilizers Bin
QasimLtd., (theparent Company) for acquisition of 51% share of theCompany.

The management anticipates that above steps will not only improve the operational performance and liquidity of the
Company but also contribute significantly towards the profitability of the Company in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly these financial statements havebeen preparedon a going concern basis.

2 Summaryof significant events andtransactions inthe current reporting period

2.1 In addition to the matters discussed above, the Company's financial position and performance was particularly
affected by the followingeventsand transactionsduring the reportingyear:

- The Company has incurred capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 1,328.60 million in aggregate (building 
and plant and machinery) for the expansion and modernization of its current manufacturing facility. The 
expansion has been financed through a combination of equity finance (end of prior year) and finances 
arranged from commercial banks.

- Inner Monogolia Yili Industrial Group Company Limited, a Chinese Company, as a potential acquirer has
expressed its intention to enter into negotiations with Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (the Parent
Company) for acquisitionof 51% sharesof theCompany.

- The accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment changed during the year as
detailed in note4.1 to these financial statements.

- Due to the first timeapplication of financial reporting requirementsunder theCompanies Act, 2017, including
disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company
has presented additional disclosures in these financial statements and represented certain comparative
figures.

- For detailed discussion about theCompany’s performance, pleaserefer to the Director’s report.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3 Basis of accounting

3.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting andreportingstandards applicable in Pakistan compriseof:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
StandardsBoard (IASB) as notifiedunder the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of anddirectives issued under theCompanies Act, 2017; and

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountantsof Pakistan as
notifiedunder the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the 
provisions of and directives issuedunder theCompanies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3.2 Accountingconvention

These financial statements have been preparedunder thehistorical cost convention except for themeasurement
of certain items of property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 8at revalued amounts, recognition of lease
liabilityand employeeretirement benefits as referred to in note10 and 11 at present value respectively.

3.3 Functional and presentationcurrency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is theCompany's functional currencyandall
financial information presentedhas been rounded offto thenearest rupees, except otherwise stated.

4 Summaryof significant accountingpolicies

The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements, except as disclosed innote 4.1.

4.1 Changes inaccountingpolicy

Up to 31 December 2017, surplus on revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery,
electric and gas installation, milk churns and other work equipment was being measured under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984. The surplus arising on the revaluation was credited to the surplus on revaluation
account. With effect from 01 January 2018, Companies Act, 2017 has become applicable and section 235 of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 relating to treatment of surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets has
not been carried forward in theCompanies Act, 2017. Accordingly the management has changed the accounting
policy to bring accounting of revaluation surplus in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16 "Property, plant
and equipment". The effect of this change in accounting policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, has
resulted in transfer of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax amounting to Rs.
1,458.97 million and Rs. 440.36 million as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 respectively to
statement of changes in equity.

4.2 Taxation

Current

Provision for current tax is basedon the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
lawfor taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected
to apply to the profit for the year if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the
year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 47



corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
lossesand taxcreditscan be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that areexpected to apply to the periodwhen the differences reverse based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The carrying
amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or
charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or
equity.

4.3 Leases

TheCompany is a lessee:

Finance leases

Leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Assets subject to finance lease are initially recognized at lower of present value of minimum lease
payments under the lease arrangements and the fair value of assets. Subsequently these assets are stated at 
cost lessaccumulated depreciationandany identified impairment loss.

Each minimum lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate
on thebalance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to profit or loss over the lease term.

Therelated rental obligations, net of finance cost, are included in liabilities against assetssubject to finance lease
as referred to in note 10. The liabilities are classified as current and non-current depending upon the timingof the
payment.

Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is representative of
the time patternof theCompany's benefits.

4.4 Employees' retirement benefits

4.4.1 Defined contributionplan

Provident fund

The Company is operating an approved provident fund scheme for all its employees since 01 May 1986.
Equal monthly contributions are made by the employer and the employee to the fund in accordance with
the fund rules at the rateof 10%of basic salary.

4.4.2 Other longterm benefits - accumulatedcompensated absences

The Company also provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the
rules of the Company. The Company accounts for these benefits in the year in which the absences are
earned. Employees are entitled to earned leaves of 30 days per annum. The unutilized leaves are
accumulated subject toa maximum of 60 days. Theunutilized accumulated leaves canbe enchased at the
time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of 60 days of an
employee is ignored while determiningbenefit obligations.

The Companyuses theactuarial valuationscarried out using the projectedunit credit method for valuation
of its accumulated compensating absences. The latest valuation was carried out on 31 December 2018.
Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences based on
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actuarial valuation and are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The amount recognized in the
statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations. Actuarial
gains and lossesare charged to the statement of profit or loss immediately in the periodwhen these occur.

4.4.3 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for all permanent employees, having a
service period of more than three years for retired army officers and more than five years for other
employees. The Company recognizes expense in accordance with IAS 19 "EmployeeBenefits".

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The latest valuationwascarried out on 31 December 2018.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest
expense on thenet defined benefit liability for theperiod by applying thediscount rateused to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plan are recognized in thestatement of profit or loss.

4.5 Tradeand otherpayables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Account balancesare classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If not, they are classified as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign
currencyareadded to the carryingamount of the respective liabilities.

4.6 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable, will result inan outflow of resourcesembodying economic benefits, to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at year end and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

4.7 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when: 

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measuredwith sufficient reliability.

4.8 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initiallyat fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and aresubsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reportingdate.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the extent of the 
remainingamount unpaid. 49



4.9 Borrowingcosts

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended useor sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowingcosts are recognized instatement of profit or loss in theperiod in which theyare incurred.

4.10 Property, plant andequipment

Property, plant andequipment except for freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and
gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
identified impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by
reference to its current market price less any identified impairment loss. Buildings on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated at revalued amount
carried out by independent valuers by reference to current market price less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss. Cost in relation to property, plant andequipment comprises acquisition and other directly
attributablecosts.

Surplus on revaluation is booked by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets being revalued,
proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. Theaccumulated depreciationat the date
of revaluation is also adjusted to equal difference between gross carrying amounts and the carrying amounts of the
assetsafter taking intoaccount accumulated impairment losses.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Each year the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of
profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred to retained earnings. Upon disposal,
any revaluation reserve relating to the particularassets being sold is transferred to retainedearnings. All transfers to /
fromsurplus onrevaluation of property, plant andequipment are net of applicable deferred tax.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, is charged to statement of profit or loss on
the reducing balance method so as to write-off the depreciable amount of an asset over its remaining estimated
useful life after taking into account the impact of their residual value, if considered significant. The assets' residual
valuesanduseful livesare reviewedat each financial year-endandadjusted if impact ondepreciation issignificant.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected physical wear and 
tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the assets and other similar
factors.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant andequipment ischarged fromthe month inwhich an asset is acquiredor
capitalizedwhile nodepreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.

Subsequent costsare included in the asset's carryingamount or recognized as a separateasset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economicbenefits associated with the item will flowto the Company and the cost of the
itemcanbe measuredreliably. All other repairsand maintenanceare charged to profit or lossduring the year inwhich
theseare incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and
thecarryingamount of the asset is recognizedas an income or expense.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and equipment
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable
amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment is recognized in profit or
loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Where an
impairment loss is recognized, the depreciationcharge is adjusted in the future periods toallocate the asset's revised
carrying amountover itsestimated useful life.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. It consists of all expenditures and
advances connected with specific assets incurred andmade during installations and construction period. These are
transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment as and when assets are available for use.50



4.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represents the cost of computer software and is stated at cost less accumulated amortization 
and any identified impairment loss. Software cost is only capitalized when it is probable that future economic
benefits attributable to the software will flow to the Company and the same is amortized applying the straight-line
method. Amortization on additions is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no
amortization is charged for themonth in which theasset is disposedoff.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset towhich it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in thestatement of profit or lossas incurred.

4.12 Stores, sparesand loosetools

Usable stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are impaired. Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon
up to the reportingdate. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a regular
basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of related
stores.

4.13 Stock-in-trade

Stock of raw and packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in transit, are valued 
principally at the lower of average cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw and packing materials is
measured at moving average cost. Work-in-process and finished goods are measured at weighted average cost
andcost comprises direct materials, labour andappropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Stock in transit is statedat invoice value plusother charges incurred thereonup to the reportingdate.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of
completionand theestimatedcost necessary to be incurred to make thesale.

4.14 Tradedebts

Trade receivables areamount due fromcustomers for merchandise sold in thenormal course of business.

Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognized at original invoice amount, which is the fair value of
consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts, if any.
Carrying amounts of trade debts and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date and a provision is
made for doubtful debts when collection of the amount is no longer probable. The provision for doubtful debt is 
recognized in thestatement of profit or loss. Debtsconsidered irrecoverable arewritten-off as and when identified.
Subsequent recoveries of amount previously writtenoff arecredited to thestatement of profit or loss.

4.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances at banks and outstanding balance of
short termrunning finances.

4.16 Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
impaired. Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financialassets areassessedcollectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on
theestimated futurecash flows of theasset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at fair value is determined by
reference to that fair value. All impairment lossesare recognized in thestatement of profit or loss. 51



Impairment losseson available for sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in
the fair value reserve to profit or loss. Theamount reclassified is the differencebetween theacquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortization) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. If the fair value of an impaired available for sale debt security
subsequently increases and the increase can be relatedobjectively to an event occurringafter the impairment loss
was recognized, then the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise it is reversed through other
comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then theasset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the timevalue of money and the risks specific to theasset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash generating units areallocated to reduce thecarrying amounts of theassets in
a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that
extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation andamortization, if no impairment losshad been recognized.

4.17 Foreign currencytransactions and translation

Transactions andbalances

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured
in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are generally
included in thestatement of profit or loss.

4.18 Financial assets andliabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights
that comprise the financial assetsand in the case of financial liabilitywhen theobligation specified in thecontract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is 
included in the statement of profit or loss for the year. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at 
cost, which is the fair value of consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities
are subsequently measured at fair value or cost as the case may be. The particular measurement methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policystatements associated witheach item.

Financial assets include trade debts, loans and deposits andother receivables andcash and bankbalances.

Financial liabilities include long term finances, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, short term
borrowings, accrued finance cost and trade andother payables.

4.19 Offsetting of financial assetsand liabilities

Financial assetsand liabilities are offset and thenet amount is reported in the financial statements only when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize theassets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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4.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for goods sold, net of discount andsales
tax. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue, and the associated cost incurred, or to be
incurred, canbe measured reliablyand there is no continuing management involvement.

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant risk and rewards of ownership of goods are
transferred to thebuyer.

- returnon deposits / savingaccounts is accounted for on `accrual basis'.

4.21 Segment reporting

Operatingsegments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reportingprovided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Boardof Directorsof the Company that makes
strategic decisions. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single
reportable segment.

4.22 Dividends andappropriations toreserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these
areapproved.

4.23 Sharecapital

Ordinaryshares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognizedas a deduction from equity, net of any taxeffects.

4.24 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial Reporting
Standards

The following International Financial ReportingStandards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017 and theamendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginningon or after
01 January 2019:

- IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments
under IAS12. The interpretation requires theuncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in themeasurement of
current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial
statements.

- IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 
2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11
‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The Company is currently in the
process of analysing the potential impact of changes required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of
thestandard.

- IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively). IFRS 9
replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9
includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a new expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
from IAS 39. The Company is currently in the process of analysing the potential impact of changes required in
classification and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of
thestandard.

- IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual periodbeginning on or after 01 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing
leasingguidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determiningwhether an Arrangement contains aLease’,
SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases - Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating theSubstance of Transactions Involving the 53



Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential
impact of its lease arrangements that will result in recognition of right to use assets and liabilities on adoption of the
standard.

- Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The amendment will affect
companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in
the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example 
state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards
are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or
settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current
service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the
gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The
applicationof amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

- Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The
IASB has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has
acquired a business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired
set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration
test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past financial
statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The
amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to
alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on
how to make materiality judgements when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with
IFRS Standards.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle. The new cycle of improvements addresses
improvements to following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. The amendment aims to clarify the accounting
treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A
company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A
company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the
business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments
on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the
distributableprofits.

- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The amendment clarify that a company treats as part of general borrowings any
borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2019 and are not likely to
have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, and the
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results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent fromother sources. Actual results maydiffer from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which estimatesare revised if the revision affectsonly that period, or in the periodof
the revision and futureperiods if the revision affects bothcurrent and futureperiods.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where
judgment wasexercised in applicationof accounting policies areas follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives and residual value for each item of property, plant and
equipment annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive
from that item and the maximum periodup to which such benefits are expected to be available. Any change in the
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of property, plant and equipment
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment. Effect of change in useful life estimate of
leased vehicles isexplained innote 17.1.5.

Revaluation of property, plant andequipment

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued
amounts of non-depreciable items are determined by reference to local market values and that of depreciable
items aredetermined by reference topresent depreciated replacement values.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property, plant and
equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a
further revaluation is required. It maybe necessary to revalue the itemonly every three to fiveyears.

Storesand spareparts

The Company reviews the stores and spare parts for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of stores and spares with a 
corresponding effect on provision.

Stock in trade

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on a regular basis. Carrying amount of stock-in-
trade is adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable value signifies the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost 
necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets including receivables and advances 
and cash generating units for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there 
is any such indication.

Provision against trade debts, advances and other receivables

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, loans, advances and other receivables at each
reporting date to assessamount of baddebts and provision required there against on annual basis.

Provisions andContingencies

The Company reviews the statusof all pending litigations andclaims against theCompany. Basedon its judgment
and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is
made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the
liabilities recognized at the reportingdate.
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2018 2017

- - (Number of shares) - - 

700,000,000700,000,000

2017

Rupees

7,000,000,000

Rupees

7,000,000,000

443,388,989503,934,166 4,433,889,8905,039,341,660

2018

-

1,127,2002,639,200 11,272,00026,392,000

5,483,00314,633,826 54,830,030146,338,260

-7,200,000 72,000,000

7,200,000- 72,000,000-

Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs.10 
each fully paid in cash 60,545,177- 605,451,770-

1,512,000- 15,120,000-

9,150,823- 91,508,230-

528,407,192528,407,192 5,284,071,9205,284,071,920

Rs.10 eachNon-voting ordinary shares of
paid on conversion of loansissued as fully

6 Share capital

6.1 Authorized capital

Shares of Rs. 10 each

6.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 
fully paid in cash

Rs.10 each

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
issued as fully paid on conversion of loans

Voting ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 

convertible preference shares

Non-voting ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
issued on conversion of 12% cumulative
convertible preference shares

paid bonus sharesissued as fully
Non-voting ordinary shares of

issued on conversion of 12% cumulative 

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amountsareshownas contingent liabilities.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan and accumulated compensated absences as
explained in note 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 to these financial statements. The calculation of the benefit requires
assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in remuneration and
the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. The assumptions used for the plan are
determined by independent actuary.

Cost primarily represents actuarial present value of theobligation for benefits earned on employee service during
the year and employee service in previous years. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumptions.
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2018 2017 2018 2017
- - - - Percentage held - - - - - - - - Number of shares - - - -

50.59% 49.40% 267,314,886 222,277,277

0.00% 57.44% - 45,037,609

12.75% 12.75% 67,371,916 57,374,896

0.00% 12.75% - 9,997,020

4.04% 14.94% 21,368,165 67,249,907

0.00% 6.64% - 5,202,613

1.62% 2.15% 8,560,700 9,661,700

4.09% 0.12% 21,606,000 556,000

0.00% 0.61% - 478,000

1.22% 0.07% 6,421,500 305,000

Ordinary share capital

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

   - voting ordinary shares

   - non-voting ordinary shares

Fauji Foundation

   - voting ordinary shares

   - non-voting ordinary shares

Directors, Chief Executive, officers and
their spouse and minor children

   - voting ordinary shares

   - non-voting ordinary shares

Employees' provident fund

   - voting ordinary shares

FFBL provident fund

   - voting ordinary shares

   - non-voting ordinary shares

FFBL gratuity fund

   - voting ordinary shares

   - non-voting ordinary shares 0.00% 0.27% - 211,000
392,643,167 418,351,022

6.5 The holders of voting ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetingsof theCompany.

7 Sharepremium

This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of the Companies
Act, 2017.

6.3 During the year, 78,408,000 fully paid non-voting ordinary shares has been converted into ordinary shares,
ranking parri passu with, and having the same rights as, the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects as approvedby theshareholders of the Company in their meeting held on 26 March2018.

6.4 Ordinaryshares of the Companyheld by associatedundertakings anddirectorsat year endareas follows:
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8 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment - net of tax

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

Revaluation surplus as at 01 January 

Surplus arisen during the year

Surplus transferred to accumulated losses on account of:

Incremental depreciation charged during the year 

- net of deferred tax

- related deferred tax liability

Revaluation surplus as at 31 December

Less: Related deferred tax liability on revaluation

surplus at 01 January 

Deferred tax on incremental depreciation

Deferred tax on surplus arisen during the year

Adjustment resulting from change of tax rate

Revaluation surplus as at 31 December - net of tax

1,804,306,912 512,340,994

8.1 - 1,365,180,697

(81,730,197) (51,250,344)

(33,382,757) (21,964,435)

(115,112,954) (73,214,779)

1,689,193,958 1,804,306,912

345,338,860 71,985,373

(33,382,757) (21,964,435)

- 295,317,922

(47,139,906) -

264,816,197 345,338,860

1,424,377,761 1,458,968,052

8.1 The Company revalued its freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and gas
installations and other works equipment during the financial years 1999, 2011, 2015 and 2017. The latest
revaluation was conducted by K.G Traders (independent valuers and consultants). Freehold land was revalued
on the basis of current market value whereas other assets were revalued on the basis of depreciated market
values. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for
buildingsandpresent operational conditionandage of plant and machineryand other assets.

2018
Rupees

2017
Rupees

4,450,000,000   4,450,000,000 

9 Long term finances - secured

Long term loans

Current maturity presented under current liabilities

9.1

12     (258,333,333)                      -

  4,191,666,667   4,450,000,000 

58



9.1.1 This facility is secured by way of first parri passu charge of Rs 1,334 million on present and future current and fixed
assets of the Company and equitable mortgage of property / land measuring 112.25 kanals and building thereon
situated in Mauza Purana Bhalwal, Tehsil Bhalwal, District Sargodha, together with structures of all sorts, amenities,
easements, etc. constructed or to be constructed thereon, plant and machinery, air conditioning / air conditioning plant,
equipment,fittings and fixtures, appurtenanceswhatsoever, installed or to be installed therein / thereon etc.

9.1.2 This facility is secured by wayof first parri passu chargeover current and fixed assets (excluding land and building) of the
Company.

9.1.3 This facility is secured by way of first parri passu charge of Rs. 1,333.33 million over all present and future current and
fixedassets (including land andbuilding) of theCompany.

9.1.4 This facility is secured by way of first parri passu charge of Rs. 2,534 million (25% margin) on all present and future
current and fixed assets (excluding landand building) of the Company.

9.1.5 All these facilitieshave been obtained to finance thebalancing, modernization and replacement (BMR) of theCompany.

9.1 Long term finances utilized under mark-up arrangements from banking companies are composed of:

3 Months KIBOR plus 0.85% per 
annum, payable quarterly.

3 Months KIBOR plus 0.60% per 
annum, payable quarterly.

3 Months KIBOR plus 0.85% per 
annum, payable quarterly.

3 Months KIBOR plus 1.58% per 
annum, payable quarterly.

12 quarterly installments starting 
from 02 August 2019 and ending 
on 02 May 2022.
6 semi-annually installments 
starting from 30 December 2019 
and ending on 30 June 2022.
12 quarterly installments starting
from01 February 2020 and ending
on01 November 2022.
6 semi-annually installments
starting from 29 June 2020 and
endingon20 December 2022.

Note 2017
Rupees

Allied Bank Limited Term Finance      800,000,000      800,000,000 

National Bank of Pakistan Term Finance      750,000,000      750,000,000 

MCB Bank Limited Demand
Finance   1,000,000,000   1,000,000,000 

9.1.1

9.1.2

9.1.3

9.1.4 Faysal Bank Limited Term Finance   1,900,000,000 1,900,000,000

10 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Leased vehicles - secured

Leased machinery - unsecured

Current maturity presented under current liabilities

2017
Note

2018
Rupees Rupees

      131,937,261    141,637,760 

      302,634,288                     -

      434,571,549    141,637,760 
12

    (145,298,654)     (38,582,834)

289,272,895 103,054,926

The Company has entered into lease agreements with different commercial banks for vehicles and with a supplier for
filling machines. The rentalsunder these agreements are repayable in 24 to 60 monthly instalments. The minimum lease
payments have been discounted at an implicit interest rate of 5.54% to 13.44% (2017: 6.05% to 9.46%) per annum to
arrive at their present value. At the end of the respective lease term, the assets shall be transferred in the name of the
Company. Taxes, repairsand insurance costs are to be borne by theCompany. In case of early termination of lease, the
lesseeshall payentire amount of rentals for unexpired periodof lease agreement.
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Note
11 Employee retirement benefits

Accumulated compensated absences 11.1
Defined benefit plan 11.2

11.1 Movement in accumulated compensated absences

Balance as at 01 January 
Charge to statement of profit or loss 11.1.2
Benefits paid during the year
Balance as at 31 December

11.1.2 Charge to the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost
Interest on defined benefit liability
Remeasurement loss

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

31,608,489 23,243,262
54,559,328 32,369,350
86,167,817 55,612,612

23,243,262 16,828,230
10,698,671 11,368,508
(2,333,444) (4,953,476)
31,608,489 23,243,262

9,453,429 8,077,810
883,062 520,242
362,180 2,770,456

10,698,671 11,368,508

50,195,761 107,883,200 158,078,961 39,989,034 125,371,876 165,360,910

 Up to  From one to five 
Note

Particulars

Minimum lease payments
Less: Finance costs allocated 

to future periods

- (26,141,700) (26,141,700) (1,406,200) (22,316,950) (23,723,150)

Less: Security deposits 
adjustable on expiry of
 lease terms

--------------------Rupees------------------ --------------------Rupees------------------

2018

61,292,013

a) Leased Vehicles - secured

115,595,094 176,887,107

 Up to  From one to five 

2017

48,384,453 134,187,481

one year years  Total one year years  Total 

182,571,934

11,096,252 7,711,894 18,808,146 8,395,419 8,815,605 17,211,024

39,511,870 57,977,894 97,489,764 - - -

10.1
Present value of minimum 
lease payments

b) Leased Machines - unsecured

Particulars

Minimum lease payments
Less: Finance costs allocated 

to future periods

50,195,761

134,614,763

95,102,893

81,741,500

265,509,289

207,531,395

131,937,261

400,124,052

302,634,288

38,582,834

-

-

103,054,926

-

-

141,637,760

-

-

10.1 This includes amount of Rs. 54.93 million (2017: Rs. 31.96 million) payable to Askari Bank Limited, a related party.
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2018
RupeesNote

11.2 Present value of defined benefit obligation

2017
Rupees

Balance as at 01 January 32,369,350 15,993,994
Charge to statement of profit or loss 11.2.1 21,374,086 17,002,003
Charge to other comprehensive income 11.2.2 815,892 (626,647)
Balance as at 31 December 54,559,328 32,369,350

11.2.1 Charge to the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 18,784,538 15,842,438
Interest on defined benefit liability 2,589,548 1,159,565

21,374,086 17,002,003
11.2.2 Charge to other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss/(gains) on present value
- Experience adjustments 815,892 (626,647)

11.2.3

21,617,246 18,784,538

Estimated expense to be charged to 
the statement of profit or loss in next year
Current service cost
Interest cost 6,506,200 2,273,749

28,123,446 21,058,287

2018 2017

13.25%
13.25%

8.00%
8.00%

Discount rate 
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005)

11.1.3 The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

As at 31 December 2018, average accumulation of leaves is 16 days per annum (2017: 13 days per annum),
subject to a maximumaccumulation of 60 days (2017: 60 days).

11.1.4 Sensitivity analysis

If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the present value of liability at the reporting date, had
fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present value of the liability as at 31 December
2018 wouldhave beenas follows:

Due to increase Due to decrease
in assumptions  in assumptions

       27,614,326        36,402,623 
       36,356,702        27,581,879 

       20,033,555        27,150,379 

Present value of liability at the year end

Discount rate 100 bps
Salary increase 100 bps

Discount rate 100 bps
Salary increase 100 bps        27,110,879        20,006,395 

- - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - 

2018

2017
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11.2.4 The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

2018 2017

13.25% 8.00%
13.25% 8.00%

Discount rate 
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005)

Asat 31 December 2018, theweighted average duration of the defined benefit obligationwas 9 years (2017:
8 years).

11.2.5 Sensitivity analysis

If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date,
had fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as at 31 December wouldhave been as follows:

      47,869,516        62,365,742 
      62,292,010        47,814,401 

      28,237,390        37,411,148 
      37,360,078        28,202,439 

Due to increase Due to decrease
in assumptions  in assumptions

- - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - 

2018

2017

Present value of defined benefit obligation at year end

Discount rate 100 bps
Salary increase 100 bps

Discount rate 100 bps
Salary increase 100 bps

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

    258,333,333                       -
    145,298,654        38,582,834 
    403,631,987        38,582,834 

4,641,084,045 1,449,501,368
349,999,476 -

4,991,083,521 1,449,501,368

Current portion of long term liabilities

Long term finances - secured
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Short term borrowings - secured

Short term running finance
Islamic mode of financing

Note

9
10

13.1 & 13.4
13.2

12

13

13.1 Short term runningfinance

This represents utilized amount of short termrunning finance facilities under mark-up arrangementsavailed
from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 4,650.94 million (2017: Rs. 4,342.30 million). These
facilities are secured against charge over all current assets and fixed assets (excluding land and building)
of the Company and carry mark-up ranging from 6.46% to 11.71% (2017: 6.43% to 6.80%) per annum,
payable quarterly and semi-annually in arrears. These facilities are expiring on various dates (Latest by
December 2018 and maximumby June 2019).

13.2 Islamicmode of financing

This represents utilized amount of short term finance facility (Wakala Istithmar) availed from Dubai Islamic
Bank aggregating to Rs. 550 million (2017: Rs 2,000 million). These facilities are secured against present
and future current and fixed assets of the Company and carries mark-up ranging from 7.26% to 10.06%
(2017: 6.65% to 6.67% ) per annum. The facility is expiring by January2019.62



13.3 Unavailed credit facilities

The facilities for opening of letter of credits and guarantees as at 31 December 2018 amounted to Rs.
1,386.24 million (2017: Rs. 789.77 million) of  which remaining unutilized amount was Rs. 1,080.89 million 
(2017: Rs. 593.17million).

13.4 Relatedparty

This includes amount of Rs. 708.02million (2017: Rs. Nil ) borrowed from Askari Bank Limited, a relatedparty.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

898,415,328 438,319,119
89,000,223 66,318,847

190,784,187 215,689,928
44,155,043 39,168,736

394,208 609,428
14.1 805,088 1,227,887

10,576,420 11,977,261
13,479,315 10,299,601

14.2 5,051,531 4,549,220
347,385 347,385

14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors
Advances from customers
Accrued expenses
Retention money payable
Due to employees
Due to associated undertaking - unsecured
Withholding income tax payable
Withholding sales tax payable
Payable to provident fund 
Workers' profit participation fund 
Others 2,256,133 2,273,699

1,255,264,861 790,781,111

14.1 Due to associated undertakings - unsecured

Noon Sugar Mills Limited
Fauji Security Services (Private) Limited
FFBL Power Company Limited

521,947
283,141

-
805,088

521,947
-

705,940
1,227,887

14.1.1 Theseare interest free in thenormal courseof business for purchaseof goodsor services.

14.2 Employees' provident fund

The Company operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its permanent and eligible
employees. The following information is based on the unaudited financial statements of the provident
fund for the year ended31 December 2018:

Size of the fund
Cost of investments made 14.2.1
Fair value of investments
Percentage of investments made

14.2.1 The breakup value of cost of investment
   is as follows:

Defence saving certificate
Special saving certificate
PLS accounts
Equity securities

    385,794,148 
    185,498,361 
    329,315,227 

85%

      16,624,000 
      10,000,000 
      43,476,125 
    115,398,236 
    185,498,361 

231,178,892
158,791,810
187,609,073

81%

18,305,000
10,000,000

272,491
130,214,319
158,791,810 63



14.2.2 The Company will comply with the limits for investment in listed securities as required under section 1(5) of
Employees' Contributory Funds (Investment in Listed Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Rules) dated 06 June
2018, withinone year from the commencement of these regulations. The fund holds 1.62 % (2017: 2.15%)
of the Company'sshare capital as referred in note6.4.

Note

15.1

15 Accrued finance cost

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks
-  Long term borrowings - secured
-  Short term borrowings - secured
-  Liabilities against assets subject to finance leases

Islamic mode of financing
- Short term financing - secured

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

104,072,985 24,578,219
80,934,045 45,998,310

462,905 532,075

10,178,733 2,264,460
195,648,668 73,373,064

15.1 This includes amount of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 0.024 million) payable to Askari Bank Limited, an associated
undertaking.

16.1 Contingencies

16.1.1 The Companyhas issued followingguarantees:
Guaranteesaggregating Rs. 83.51 million (2017: Rs. 70.84 million) have been issued by bankson
behalf of the Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan State Oil and Controller
Naval Account.

16.1.2 The Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section177 of the Income TaxOrdinance, 2001
(the Ordinance) for the tax year 2005, had passed an amended assessment order under section
122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs. 34.99 million alleging that the Company
suppressed its sales. The Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) annulled this
assessment order whereas the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) had set aside theorder
of CIR-Aandremanded thecase back toCIR-A for denovoproceedings. TheCIR-A, videhisorder
dated 03 September 2012, has allowed partial relief of Rs. 11.32 million to the Company. The
remaining disputed amount after rectification order under section 221 of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001 dated 16 May 2013 out of Rs. 34.99 million now stands at Rs. 18.28 million. Both
the Company and the Department have filed appeals before the ATIR against the order of CIR-A,
whicharepending adjudications.

16.1.3 The Company, during the financial year ended 30 June 2011, received a noticeunder section 177
of the Ordinance for the tax year 2009 for selection of its case for detailed scrutiny. The Company
filed a writ petition before the Honourable Lahore High Court which was dismissed vide order
dated 27 May2015.

The Company filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan which directed
that the Company should seek remedy in this respect before the intra court appeal of the
Honourable Lahore High Court. Thematter is now pending in intra court appeal.

16.1.4 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue raised income tax demand under section 122(5A)
of the Ordinance for the tax year 2010 amounting Rs. 5.63 million. The Company filed an appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals, which was decided in the favour of the
Company, however the Department is contesting the order before the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue(ATIR).

16.    Contingencies and commitments
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16.1.5 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue raised income tax demand under section 122(5A) of the 
Ordinance for the tax year 2011 amounting Rs 21.8 million. The Company, through its external legal
counsel, filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided in
favour of the Company with the exception of Rs. 2.97 million addition by CIR-A. The Company has
subsequently filed an appeal before the ATIR against confirmation of the said addition and the
Department is contesting the relief allowed by CIR-A. Further, second amendment order has also been
framed under section 122(5A) determining additional tax demand at Rs. 10.09 million. The Company has
filedan appeal beforeCIR-Aagainst thesecondamendment order.

16.1.6 In the year 2015, the Company received a notice under section 177 of theOrdinance in respect of taxyear
2012 for selectionof its case for taxaudit by the Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR). The Company filed
a writ petition before the Honourable Lahore High Court against the selection of case by CIR under the 
aforementioned section. During the year, the writ petition was decided against the Company and
consequently audit proceedings were initiated wherein a demand of Rs. 30 Million was raised by
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The
Company, through its external council, filed an appeal against the order before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue- Appeals (CIR - A) which is pending adjudication.

16.1.7 During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue raised income
taxdemand under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the taxyear 2014 amounting to
Rs 32.63 million by treating differences in sales tax returns as compared to audited accounts. The
proceedingsare in progress.

Further, the Company has been selected for audit in respect of tax year 2014 under section 214C of the
IncomeTax Ordinance, 2001. Proceedings in this respect are still to be initiated.

16.1.8 During the year, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue issued a show cause notice under section
161 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2017 against non-deduction of withholding tax on
paymentsagainst milk procurement, contractual services and air ticketing amounting to Rs 60.62 million.
Theproceedingsare inprogress.

16.1.9 During the year ended 31 December 2017, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised sales
tax demand of Rs. 102 million under section 10 and 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act 1990 against inadmissible
input tax adjustment and non-deduction of withholding sales tax during the period from July 2015 to June
2016. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR - A) which was
decided against the Company. The Company being aggrieved filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal
InlandRevenue(ATIR) which is pending adjudication.

16.1.10 During the year ended 31 December 2017, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued sales
tax order, dated 26 May 2017 for payment of Rs. 974 million for sales tax along with 100% default
surcharge and penalty of Rs. 225 million due to alleged non-payment of sales tax on sales of “Chai Mix,
Dairy Rozana and Dostea (tea whitener)” for the tax period July 2011 to December 2016. The order is
based on the grounds that exemption is available to the Company only to the extent of dairy products and
tea whitener is not milk / dairy product. The Company being aggrieved filed appeal initially before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) and then to the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) where the matter was heard and decided in favour of the Company on jurisdictional grounds. The
Department and the Company have filed appeals before the Honourable High Court which are pending
adjudication.

Further during the year, theAssistant Commissioner InlandRevenue (ACIR) issued a show cause notice,
dated 10 October 2018 for payment of Rs. 974 million for sales tax along with 100% default surcharge and
penalty of Rs. 129 million due to alleged non-payment of sales tax on sales of "Dostea Chai Mix (tea
whitener)” for the tax period January to December 2017. The order is based on the same grounds on
which the order dated 26 May 2017 as explained above was issued. The Company has filed a writ petition
against this show cause notice before the High Court on jurisdictional and technical grounds which is
pending adjudication.
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Meanwhile, the matter was forwarded by the Regional Tax Officer Sargodha to Model Custom
Collectorate of Appraisement (East), Customs House, Karachi for determination of appropriate
classification of tea whitener. The hearings of the matter are underway but no final decision have
been made till the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that tea whitener classification
has already determined by theAppraisement Committee in the past and theCompany was following
thesame PCT code as wasdetermined for thepurposes of sales tax.

16.1.11 During the year, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue(ACIR) through its order dated 23 October
2018, raiseda sales taxdemand for theperiod from July 2016 to June 2017, under section 11(2) and
11(3) of Sales Tax Act, 1990, amounting to Rs. 145.57 million along with penalty of Rs. 7.28 million
against inadmissibleadjustment of input taxon goodsnot related to taxable supplies, non-realization
of sales tax on disposal of fixed assets and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against
advertisement. The Company is in process of filing appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue -
Appeals (CIR-A).

16.1.12 During the year, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue(ACIR) issueda show causenotice, dated
09 November 2018, against inadmissible adjustment of input tax on goods not related to taxable
supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against advertisement amounting to
Rs. 399.60 million. The Company is in processof filing asuitable response.

16.1.13 During the year, Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised sales tax demand for the
period June 2017 to August 2017 under section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 against non
realization of sales tax amounting to Rs. 0.53 million on sale made to withholding agents. The
Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which is
remanded back toACIR for re-evaluation.

16.1.14 During the year, Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised sales tax demand for the
period from January 2016 to December 2016 under section 11(2) of theSales Tax Act, 1990 against
non realizationof sales taxamounting to Rs. 1.85 millionon sale scrap. TheCompany filedan appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), which was decided in the favour of the
Department. The Company being aggrieved filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue(ATIR) which ispending adjudication.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management
believes that the Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability
is expected to accrue. Accordingly, no provisionhasbeen made in these financial statements.

16.2 Commitments

TheCompany has the followingcommitments in respect of:

16.2.1 Commitments, for capital expenditure, against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding at the year
endwere for Rs. 56.98 million (2017: Rs. 201.46million).

16.2.2 Commitments, for purchase of raw / packing material, outstanding at the year end were for Rs.
312.14 million (2017: Rs. 883.10million).

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

17.1  6,885,161,167   6,637,495,791 

17 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress 17.2  1,067,982,436      184,777,907 

 7,953,143,603   6,822,273,698 
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Company policy

17.1.1 Disposal of operating assets

Particulars
of assets

Relationship
with

Company
Cost Net book 

value
Sale

proceeds
Gain on 
disposal

Mode of
disposal

Mazher Ali

Rana Ejaz

M. Tahir

Muhammad Rafeeq

Sadia Kanwal

Tariq Islam 

Muazzam Ali Shah

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Ex-employee

Employee

Auction

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

612,800

612,800

921,430

999,500

1,752,840

1,099,000

688,000

  6,686,370 

40,302

41,947

160,025

180,133

292,929

591,628

352,050

     1,659,014 

248,333

333,333

448,333

362,500

820,833

602,794

387,165

   3,203,291 

208,031

291,386

288,308

182,367

527,904

11,166

35,115

       1,544,277 

Vehicles

Suzuki Alto

Suzuki Cultus

Suzuki Cultus

Honda City

Honda Civic

Suzuki Cultus

Suzuki Mehran

2018

2017   8,503,975      4,673,863    3,830,112        5,705,995 

Particulars of 
purchaser

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

17.1.2 Had these revaluations not been carried out, the carrying amount of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant
andmachinery, electric andgas installations andother work equipment wouldhave been as follows:

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

73,365,999 68,601,624

694,364,030 758,555,076

3,794,806,728 3,718,303,171

8,687,002 9,652,226

Freehold land

Buildings on freehold land

Plant and machinery including milk churns

Electric and gas Installations

Other works equipment 16,777,157 9,225,269

4,588,000,916 4,564,337,366

17.1.3 The manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Sargodha Road, Bhalwal, District Sargodha. Total owned
area is 120kanals and5 marlasandcovered area of building is 172,550 square feet.

17.1.4 The latest revaluation was carried on at 30 June 2017 by K.G. Traders (Private) Limited. As per the revaluation
report, forced sale value of freehold land and buildings on free hold land was Rs. 613.28 million and Rs. 652.18
million respectively and forced sales value of plant and machinery, milk churns, electric and gas installations and
other worksequipment was Rs. 3,512.95million.

17.1.5 As of 01 January 2018, the Company has revised its estimate of the remaining useful life of leased vehicles from
20% to 33.33%. This change in estimate of useful lifeof leased vehicles hasbeen applied prospectively as required
under IAS-8 'Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates anderrors. Had the useful life estimate not been
revised, the depreciation charge for the current year and for financial years 2019 and 2020 would have been lower
by Rs. 21.14 million, Rs. 9.87 million and Rs. 3.20 million respectively and for financial years 2021 and 2022 would
have been higher by Rs. 0.58 millionand Rs. 2.55 million respectively.
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Secondary sale system 
Anti-virus
Secondary sale system (Tally)
SAP - HCM Module

33.33
33.33

1,983,860
432,032

5,996,916
300,000

8,712,808

1,983,860
432,032

5,996,916
2,110,726

10,523,534

-
-
-

1,810,726
1,810,726

1,983,860
432,032

1,998,972
41,667

4,456,531

-
-

1,998,972
653,277

2,652,249

1,983,860
432,032

3,997,944
694,944

7,108,780

-
-

1,998,972
1,415,782
3,414,754

18.1 Intangible assets

2018

-------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------

Accumulated Accumulated Book valueCost as at Amortization Amortization as at
31 December 01 January 31 December 31 DecemberAdditions

2018 2018 2018 2018

Rate of
Amortization

%

Cost as at
01 January

2018

Amortization
charge

for the year

2017

-------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------

Accumulated Accumulated Book value
Cost as at amortization amortization as at

31 December 01 January 31 December 31 DecemberAdditions
2017 2017 2017 2017

Rate of
amortization

%

Cost as at
01 January

2017

Amortization
charge

for the year

Secondary sale system
Anti-virus
Secondary sale system (Tally)
SAP - HCM Module

33.33
33.33

1,983,860
432,032

-
-

2,415,892

-
-

5,996,916
300,000

6,296,916

1,983,860
432,032

5,996,916
300,000

8,712,808

1,983,860
432,032

-
-

2,415,892

-
-

1,998,972
41,667

2,040,639

1,983,860
432,032

1,998,972
41,667

4,456,531

-
-

3,997,944
258,333

4,256,277

Note

28

28

29

30

17.1.6 The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
2018 2017

Rupees Rupees

62,439,477 51,107,123

558,633,673 450,005,700

25,342,255 17,016,137

27,319,913 20,620,353

673,735,318 538,749,313

17.2.1

Milk collection centres

Cost of sales

Marketing and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

17.2 Capital work-in-progress

Plant and machinery

Building

Leased vehicles 

Office equipment

857,915,549 83,640,338

158,506,111 87,534,569

24,651,000 13,603,000

26,909,776 -

1,067,982,436 184,777,907

17.2.1 This includes borrowing cost of Rs. 5.26 million (2017: Rs. 25.80 million) capitalized during the year
calculated at themarkuprate of 7.04% (2017: 6.67%) per annum.

18 Intangible assets

Intangible assets
Capital work-in-progress

18.1
18.2

2018
Rupees

3,414,754
55,743,389
59,158,143

2017
Rupees

4,256,277
13,122,111
17,378,388
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18.1.1 The amortization charge has been allocated as follows:

Marketing and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

18.2 This represent advance paid for installation of SAP ERP software.

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

29 1,998,972 1,998,972
30 653,277 41,667

2,652,249 2,040,639

19.1 Deferred tax asset has only been recognised on the losses amounting to Rs. 8,244 million as availability 
of sufficient taxable profits in future tax year to absorb these losses is expected and no deferred tax asset 
on remaining losses of Rs. 1,295.91 million has been recognised as sufficient tax profits may not be 
available to set these off in foreseeable future.

Note

19 Deferred taxation - net

The deferred tax asset comprises of the following

Deductible temporary differences:

- unused tax losses 19.1 2,069,440,000 1,610,535,850
- unused tax credit 159,425,493 258,340,976
- provisions 32,518,433 21,116,947

2,261,383,926 1,889,993,773
Less: Taxable temporary differences:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances net of lease liability 425,030,348 483,407,321
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 264,816,198 345,338,860

689,846,546 828,746,181

Deferred taxation - net 19.2 1,571,537,380 1,061,247,592

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

19.2 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:

Deferred taxation 

Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference

Unused tax losses 1,610,535,850 458,904,150 - 2,069,440,000
Unused tax credit 258,340,976 (98,915,483) - 159,425,493
Provisions 21,116,947 11,401,486 - 32,518,433
Accelerated tax depreciation 
allowances (483,407,321) 58,376,973 - (425,030,348)
Surplus on revaluation of  property,

plant and equipment (345,338,860) 33,382,756 47,139,906 (264,816,198)

1,061,247,592 463,149,882 47,139,906 1,571,537,380

Reversal from / (charge to)
Opening Profit or loss Equity Closing

2018

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - (Rupees in thousand) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
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Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference

Unused tax losses
Unused tax credit
Provisions
Accelerated tax depreciation 
allowances
Surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment

845,806,955
120,000,000
26,597,902

764,728,895
138,340,976

(5,480,955)

-
-
-

1,610,535,850
258,340,976
21,116,947

(291,877,845) (191,529,476) - (483,407,321)

(71,985,373) 21,964,435 (295,317,922) (345,338,860)

628,541,639 728,023,875 (295,317,922) 1,061,247,592

Reversal from / (charge to)
Opening Profit or loss Equity Closing

2017

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - (Rupees in thousand) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

47,934,809 43,853,061
97,192,654 62,917,094

361,098 364,050
145,488,561 107,134,205

(3,356,101) -
142,132,460 107,134,205

Note

20.1

20 Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores
Spares
Loose tools

Less: provision for obsolescence

20.1 Movement in provision for obsolescence
- -

3,356,101 -

3,356,101 -

Balance as at 01 January
Provision for the year
Balance as at 31 December

21 Stock-in-trade

857,374,937 550,250,497
235,680,171 321,313,518

1,093,055,108 871,564,015

37,295,000 26,134,645
257,881,802 123,457,306

1,388,231,910 1,021,155,966
(7,831,398)

1,380,400,512 1,021,155,966

21.2

21.2

Raw and packing material
- In hand
- In transit

Work-in-process
Finished goods

Less: provision for obsolescence

21.1 Movement in provision for obsolescence

-
7,831,398

7,831,398

Balance as at 01 January
Provision for the year
Balance as at 31 December

-

-

-

-
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21.2 The amount charged to the statement of profit or loss on account of write down of finished goods and work-
in-process to net realizablevalue amounts to Rs. 12.95 million (2017: Rs. 31.10 million).

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

124,573,265 129,704,758
14,777,210 14,777,210

139,350,475 144,481,968
(14,777,210) (14,777,210)
124,573,265 129,704,758

Note

22.1

22 Trade debts

Unsecured

 - Considered good
 - Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

22.1 Provision for doubtful debts

14,777,210 11,000,000
- 3,777,210

14,777,210 14,777,210
32

Balance as at 01 January
Provision for the year
Balance as at 31 December

24 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Security deposits
Prepayments
Other receivables

128,109,409 98,327,063
4,567,096 3,062,612

601,111,088 388,487,989
733,787,593 489,877,664

25 Due from associated undertakings - unsecured

Noon International (Private) Limited
Askari Bank Limited

39,247 39,247
269,648 1,054,339
308,895 1,093,586

23.1 No loan or advance has been given to Chief Executive or any other Director of the Company.

5,454,374 3,575,796

23 Loan and advances - unsecured

Due from employees - Considered good
Advances to suppliers   - Considered good 56,072,719 72,367,572

61,527,093 75,943,368
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               269,648 

                           -
               269,648 

Less than
3 months

                              -

                     39,247 
                     39,247 

Greater than
6 months

1,054,339

39,247
              1,093,586 

2017
Rupees

2018
Rupees

Askari Bank Limited

Noon International 

(Private) Limited

25.2 Aging of receivables of related party is as follows:

269,648

39,247
                   308,895 

26 Cash and bank balances

Cash-in-hand

Cash at banks on:

- Current accounts
- Saving accounts
- Dividend accounts

25.3 These are interest free in the normal course of business on account of purchase of goods or services.

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

737,941 545,731

6,196,620 91,281,117
26.1 91,065,247 1,103,253,352

221,490 221,490
26.2 97,483,357 1,194,755,959

98,221,298 1,195,301,690

27 Sales - net

Gross sales

Less: Sales tax
Trade discounts

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

7,111,439,606

(63,451,017)
(47,033,283)

(110,484,300)

8,306,734,551

(77,759,771)
(134,851,689)

(212,611,460)
8,094,123,091 7,000,955,306

26.1 This carries profit at the rates ranging from 3.75% to 5% (2017: 3.75% to 5%) per annum.

26.2 This includes amount of Rs. 32.73 million (2017: Rs. 347.41 million) at Askari Bank Limited, a relatedparty.

In the
month of 

In the
month of 

Oct-18

Dec-18

Dec-17

Dec-17

2018
Rupees

               2,826,524 

                     39,247 

2017
Rupees

              1,054,339 

                    39,247 

Askari Bank Limited
Noon International 

(Private) Limited

25.1 Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month end balances:
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28.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

28.1 This includes salaries, wages and other benefits amounting to Rs. 99.58 million (2017 : Rs. 71.86
million) and provident fund amounting to Rs. 1.94 million (2017 : Rs. 1.61 million).

Note28 Cost of Sales
2018

Rupees
2017

Rupees

28.1
28.2

 3,256,877,739 
    232,627,326 
    218,710,464 
    329,705,354 
 2,780,979,646 
    188,640,619 
    177,922,883 

Raw materials consumed 
Milk collection expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Power and fuel
Packing materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed 
Repair and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

   3,011,268,056 
      138,051,271 
      192,328,133 
      275,743,435 
   2,249,180,485 
      143,113,304 
      163,104,558 

17.1.6

20.1

    558,633,673 

      10,051,299 
        3,356,101 
 7,849,645,385 

      26,134,645 
21      (37,295,000)

     (11,160,355)
 7,838,485,030 

    123,457,306 
21    (250,922,457)

   (127,465,151)

 7,711,019,879 

Insurance
Provision for obsolete stocks and stores

Adjustment of work-in-process

Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Adjustment of finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

        450,005,700
      20,631,270 

        12,842,194 
                      -
   6,707,375,529 

        72,762,966 
      (26,134,645)
        46,628,321 
   6,754,003,850 

      175,283,807 
    (123,457,306)
        51,826,501 

   6,805,830,351 

      29,700,804

        51,107,123

Provident fund
Long term accumulated compensated absences
Gratuity

        5,041,537 
        4,248,996 
        8,549,634 
      17,840,167 

          6,941,551 
          3,978,978 
          5,950,701 
        16,871,230 

2018
Rupees

2017
Rupees

17.1.6       62,439,477 - Milk collection centres
- Production facility
Rent Rates & Taxes
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2018
Note Rupees

372,074,161
29.1 234,623,711

76,302,736
1,663,099
3,116,930
9,264,474

33,995,415
1,701,917,975

2,186,637
17.1.6 25,342,255
18.1.1 1,998,972

7,460,753

29 Marketing and distribution expense

Freight and forwarding
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Rent
Entertainment
Communication
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicles' running and maintenance
Advertisement and sales promotion 
Insurance
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization
Samples
Others 6,047,627

2,475,994,745

29.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

2017
Rupees

330,282,201
233,157,889
66,558,970
2,274,159
5,685,798

15,802,206
22,228,763

1,616,165,375
3,098,758

17,016,137
1,998,972

17,691,544
3,187,902

2,335,148,674

Provident fund
Long term accumulated compensated absences
Gratuity

          9,643,211 
          3,978,978 
          5,950,701 

        9,842,962 
        4,442,593 
        8,549,634 
      22,835,189         19,572,890 

30.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

30.1

37

30.2

17.1.6
18

30 Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Travelling and conveyance:
- directors
- others
Directors' meeting fee
Rent, rates and taxes
Entertainment
Communication
Printing and stationery
Electricity, gas and water
Insurance
Repair and maintenance
Vehicles' running and maintenance
Subscription
Legal and professional charges
Learning and Development
Auditors' remuneration
Cash security charges
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Others

237,138,781

5,008,971
19,201,564
3,909,669

48,626,858
2,969,989
8,579,675
7,017,800

10,862,828
364,440

9,235,563
13,531,694
3,128,477

30,581,919
17,497,568
1,335,000
5,697,909

27,319,913
653,277

12,987,488
465,649,383

236,678,083

9,168,909
21,254,740
1,449,500

41,806,649
3,399,561
7,374,964
9,104,674
7,413,812

940,343
7,295,413

10,494,953
4,386,065

17,158,132
11,389,735
1,235,000
5,700,938

20,620,353
41,667

13,288,496
430,201,987
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Note

8,314,319

7,953,763
1,544,277

31 Other income

Income from financial assets

Profit on saving accounts

Income from non-financial assets

Sale of scrap 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Liabilities no longer payable written back -

17,812,359

87,051,591
22.1 -

-
-

9,811,622
96,863,213

32 Other expenses

Exchange loss
Provision for doubtful debts
Voluntary separation scheme
Staff training
Research and development

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

        5,860,473 
        2,247,885 

Provident fund
Long term accumulated compensated absences
Gratuity         4,274,818 

      12,383,176 
30.2 Legal and professional charges

1,000,000
125,000
60,000

The charges for professional services include the following 
   in respect of auditors' services for:

- Statutory audit fee
- Half yearly review
- Certification charges
- Out-of-pocket expenses 150,000

1,335,000

          5,284,742 
          3,410,552 
          5,100,601 
        13,795,895 

750,000
125,000
210,000
150,000

1,235,000

7,820,518

14,993,802
1,875,883
4,666,100

29,356,303

28,992,565
3,777,210

15,148,181
16,037,484
13,115,362
77,070,802

27,038,289

354,212,096
258,941,891
10,347,191

33 Finance cost

Islamic mode of financing
- Short term financing

Interest / mark-up on interest / mark-up based loans
- Long term finance
- Short term borrowings
- Finance lease
Bank charges and commission 24,257,247

674,796,714

145,104,870

55,020,666
183,944,440
10,796,414
3,479,139

398,345,529
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(795,012,918) (728,023,875)  - For the year
  - Prior year 331,863,036 -

(463,149,882) (728,023,875)

34.1 Current tax charge for the year determined under "Minimum Tax" regime u/s 113, of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 has been restricted to zero because of the taxcredit related to balancing, modernization
and replacement of plant and machinery already installed, as available u/s 65B of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

34.2 Tax charge reconciliation

(3,312,388,484) (3,016,285,734)

(960,592,660) (904,885,720)

98,915,483 (138,340,976)
331,863,036 -

66,664,259 315,202,821
- -

497,442,778 176,861,845

Reconciliation between the average effective 
tax charge and the applicable tax

Loss before tax

Applicable tax @ 29% / 30%

Effect of tax credit
Effect of change in tax rate
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized 
    on unused tax losses
Others

Effective tax credit for the year (463,149,882) (728,023,875)

2018 2017

Rupees (2,849,238,602) (2,288,261,859)

Number 528,407,192 248,263,942

Rupees (5.39) (9.22)

35 Loss per share
Loss per share - basic and diluted

Loss for the year 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year 

Loss per share - basic and diluted

 Tax provision 
as per financial 

statements

 Tax as per 
assessment / 

return
 Rupees  Rupees 

Nil 5,678,709
Nil Nil

Tax Years

2016
2017
2018 Nil Nil

34.3 As per management's assessment, the provision for tax made in the financial statements is sufficient. A
comparison of last threeyears' of incometaxprovisions with tax assessment is presentedbelow:

Deferred:

34.1 - -
- -

Current:
  - For the year

2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees

34 Taxation
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2018 2017
Note Rupees Rupees36 Cash and cash equivalents

26 98,221,298 1,195,301,690Cash and bank balances
Running finance balances 13.1 (4,641,084,045) (1,449,501,368)

(4,542,862,747) (254,199,678)

37 Remunerationof Chief Executive, DirectorsandExecutives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits, to
Chief Executive, directorsand executivesof theCompany isas follows:

Managerial remuneration
Meeting fee
Consultancy fee
Provident fund
House rent
Utilities
Relocation allowance
Others

Number of persons

37.1 The Company also provides one director and some of its executives with company maintained cars and travel
facilities.

1 1 11 11

-----------------------------------------Rupees----------------------------------

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
3,909,669
5,248,872

-
-
-
-
-

9,158,541

-
1,449,500
7,873,308

-
-
-
-
-

9,322,808

46 139

90,526,119
-
-

12,932,701
81,473,507
9,052,612

440,591
6,222,585

200,648,115

169,314,255
-
-

14,574,804
131,173,236
14,574,804
1,102,940
4,314,825

335,054,864

Executives

20172018

Non Executive 
Directors

20172018

Chief Executive

20172018

2018 2017

Factory employees

2018 2017

Total employees

(Number of persons) (Number of persons)

1,222 979 1,451 1,508

1,231 822 1,462 1,397

38 Number of employees

Total number of employees as 
at 31 December

39 Average number of employees 

Capacity Production

2018 2017 2018 2017Capacity and  production 

The actual production is according to market demand.

227,760,000
6,935,000

227,760,000
6,935,000

90,295,898
1,778,587

86,699,115
725,221

   Liquid products - litres
   Non - Liquid products - Kgs
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Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) Parent

Fauji Foundation

Askari Bank Limited

Fauji Meat Limited

Fauji Security Services (Private) Limited

FFBL Gratuity Fund

FFBL Provident Fund Trust

Employee's Provident Fund Trust

Mr. Salman Hayat Noon 

Mr. Malik Adnan Hayat Noon 

Ultimate Parent

Associated Undertaking

Associated Undertaking

Associated Undertaking

Post employee benefit plan of related entity

Post employee benefit plan of related entity

Post employee benefit plan

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Directors

Key Management Personnel

Salaries of seconded employees charged by related party
Salaries of seconded employees charged to related party
Repair & maintenance and building rent expense 
charged by related party

Expense borne by the Company on behalf of 
related party

Purchase of fixed assets from related party
Equity contribution

Equity contribution

Finance cost charged by related party
Interest income on saving accounts
Utilities expense paid on behalf of the related party

Expense borne by the Company on behalf of related party

Expenses paid against security services

Equity contribution

Equity contribution

Contribution for the year 
Equity contribution

Consultancy fee expense

Equity contribution

Equity contribution

Meeting fee

Equity contribution

Remuneration and benefits

2,521,764 32,044,602
9,414,999 -

49,752,977 44,352,898

918,531 -

2,008,977,790
3,500,000 1,918,500

-

- 505,289,370

27,733,006 51,791,298
6,167,619 4,904,667
2,298,055 1,054,339

459,266 -

2,897,782 628,106

- 5,160,000

-

-

10,340,000

60,963,473 21,869,504
79,631,500

5,248,872 -

-

-

212,002,920

316,429,290

3,909,669 -

- 1,260

76,334,485 -

40.1 Associated companies / related parties percentage of shareholding has been disclosed in note 6.4.

2018
Rupees

2017
Rupees

40 Related party transactionsand balances

Related parties comprise of parent company, associated companies, directors, entities with common directorship, post
employment plans and key management personnel. Balances are disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements. The
Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with related parties. Significant transactions with related
partiesareas follows:

41 Financial risk management

41.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk, price risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management focuses on the unpredictabilityof
financial markets andseeks to minimizepotential adverse effectson theCompany's financial performance.
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Bills payable - Euro
Net exposure - Euro

Bills payable - US Dollar
Net Exposure - US Dollar

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupees per Euro:
- Average rate
- Reporting date rate

Rupees per USD:

- Average rate
- Reporting date rate

504,335 297,327
504,335 297,327

145,200 -
145,200 -

2018 2017

2018 2017

142.57 121.28
159.1 131.97

120.61 107.62
139.1 110.5

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk
management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its trainingand management standardsand procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

TheAudit Committee overseeshow management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
undertakes both regular andad hoc reviews of riskmanagement controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the AuditCommittee.

The Company's exposure to financial risk, the way these risks affects the financial position and performance
and themanner inwhich suchrisks aremanaged is as follows:

41.1.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Company's income or value of its holding of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.

41.1.1.1 Foreign exchangerisk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payablesexist
due to transactions with foreign buyersandsuppliers.

The Company is exposed to exchange risk arising from currency exposures mainly with respect to
the Euro and US Dollar on import of raw material, packing material and stores and spares.
Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to 
the foreign entities. TheCompany'sexposure to foreign exchangerisk isas follows:
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10% (8,005,312)
-10%         8,005,312 
10%       (2,016,683)

-10%         2,016,683 
10%       (3,937,799)

-10%         3,937,799 

31 December 2018 - Euro

31 December 2018 - US Dollar

31 December 2017 - Euro

31 December 2017 - US Dollar 10%                      -
-10%                      -

Change in 
Exchange

rate

Effect on 
loss

before tax

% Rupees

Foreign currencysensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, if the Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the Euro and US Dollar with all
other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year wouldhave been higher / lower as under, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instrument. The
following table demonstrates thesensitivity to a reasonablypossible change in theEuro exchangerate:

41.1.1.2 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in themarket. TheCompany isnot exposed to any significant price risk.

41.1.1.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of
financial assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in agiven period.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term finances, lease finances and short term finances.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates exposes theCompany to cash flowinterest rate risk.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as
follows:

Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments

Liabilities against assets
 subject to finance lease
Long term finances
Short term borrowings
Total exposure

             434,571,549 
          4,450,000,000 
          4,991,083,521 

9,875,655,070

         141,637,760 
      4,450,000,000 
      1,449,501,368 

6,041,139,128

5.54% to 13.44%
6.76% to 9.88%

6.46% to 11.71%

6.05% to 9.46%
6.73% to 7.01%
6.43% to 6.80%

Fixed rate instruments

Saving accounts
Total exposure

                91,065,247 
                91,065,247 

      1,103,253,352 
      1,103,253,352 

3.75% to 5% 3.75% to 5%

Financial assets

2018
Rupees

2017
Rupees

2018 2017

- - - - - - - Effective rate - - - - - - - - 
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the 
Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At 31 December 2018, if interest rate on variable rate financial liabilities has been 1% higher / lower with all
other variables held constant, loss before tax for theyear wouldhave been Rs. 98.76 million (2017: Rs. 60.41
million) higher / lower, mainlyas a result of higher / lower interest expense on variable rate financial liabilities.

41.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
discharge its contractual obligation. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness
of counterparties.

Credit risk primarily arises from credit exposure to customers anddeposit with banksand financial institutions.
To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into
account the customer's financial position, past experience and other relevant factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with criteriadeveloped for managing risk by board. The
utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored and major sales to customers are on advance terms, thus
limiting credit exposure. For banks and financial institutions credit quality is determined with respect to
external credit ratingsperformed by independent parties.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit riskat the reportingdate was:

1 to 90 days
91 to 180 days
181 to 365 days
Above 365 days

2017
Rupees

    127,212,107 
        2,492,651 
                     -
                     -
    129,704,758 

2018
Rupees

       114,649,050 
           1,323,106 
           1,081,100 
           7,520,008 
       124,573,264 

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees

       129,053,715       99,271,369 
       124,573,265     129,704,758 
           5,454,374         3,575,796 
              308,895         1,093,586 
       601,111,088     388,487,989 

Loans and receivables

Security deposits
Trade debts
Due from employees
Due from related parties
Other receivables
Bank balances          97,483,357  1,194,755,959 

       957,984,694  1,816,889,457 

The credit riskon liquid funds is limitedbecause thecounter partiesare bankswith reasonable high credit ratings.

The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as it's exposure is spread over a large
number of counter parties.

All the trade debts at the reporting date represent domestic parties. The ageing of trade debts at the year-end was as
follows:
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The management estimates the recoverability of trade debts on basis of financial position and past history of its
customers. Based on the objective evidence that it will not receive the amount due from the particular customers,
provision is made in the financial statements.

Bank Short
term

 Long 
term

Rating
Agency

2018
Rupees

2017
Rupees

Rating

A1+ AAA PACRA            3,952,266 National Bank Of Pakistan     621,132,315 

A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS               294,718 United Bank Limited            296,823 

A1+ AA+ PACRA          32,730,812 Askari Bank Limited     352,121,302 

A1+ AA+ PACRA                   5,738 Bank Alfalah Limited       33,460,338 

A1+ AAA PACRA               883,524 MCB Bank Limited         7,750,989 

A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS          57,263,442 Habib Bank Limited       72,907,612 

A1+ AAA PACRA                         -Allied Bank Limited                6,342 

A1+ AA PACRA               164,591 Faysal Bank Limited       22,496,797 

A1 A+ PACRA               284,999 Bank Islami Pakistan       15,343,905 

A1+ AA+ PACRA               658,082 Bank Al-Habib Limited            115,118 

A1+ AA- PACRA                      550 Soneri Bank       31,090,891 

Dubai Islamic Bank A-1 AA- JCR-VIS            1,244,635       38,033,527 

         97,483,357  1,194,755,959 

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these
counter parties on their obligations to theCompany. Accordingly, thecredit risk is minimal.

41.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset as they fall due. The Company's approach is
to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The Company finances its operations
through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various
sources of finance to minimize risk. The Company's finance department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding
by keeping regular committedcredit lines available.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractualundiscounted cash flows.
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Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Less than
1 year

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Between
1 to 5 years

434,571,549 550,869,459 195,906,776
4,450,000,000 5,438,427,333 688,964,274
1,136,809,987 1,136,809,987 1,136,809,987

195,648,668 195,648,668 195,648,668
4,991,083,521 4,991,083,521 4,991,083,521

11,208,113,725 12,312,838,968 7,208,413,226

At 31 December 2018

Non derivative financial liabilities

Liabilities against assets

subject to finance lease

Long term finances

Trade and other payables
Accrued finance cost

Short term borrowings

354,962,683
4,749,463,059

-
-
-

5,104,425,742

At 31 December 2017
Non derivative financial liabilities

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Less than
1 year

Between
1 to 5 years

Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease

Long term finances

Trade and other payables
Accrued finance cost

Short term borrowings

141,637,760 158,848,784 46,978,253

4,450,000,000 5,473,270,429 309,765,000

698,258,976 698,258,976 698,258,976
73,373,064 73,373,064 73,373,064

1,449,501,368 1,449,501,368 1,449,501,368

6,812,771,168 7,853,252,621 2,577,876,661

111,870,531

5,163,505,429

-
-

-

5,275,375,960

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on thebasis of interest /
mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of interest / mark-up have been disclosed in the
respectivenotes to these financial statements.

41.2 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at themeasurement date.

Underlying the definitionof fair value is thepresumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention
or requirement to curtail materially thescale of its operationsor to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the
quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for financial
assetsheld by theCompany is current bidprice.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent
actual andregularlyoccurring market transactionson an arm's lengthbasis.



On-Balance sheet financial instruments
31 December 2018

Financial assets not measured at fair value

958,722,635 - 958,722,635 - - -

           129,053,715 - 129,053,715 - - -Security deposits

22            124,573,265 - 124,573,265 - - -Trade debts

23                5,454,374 - 5,454,374Due from employees - - -

25                   308,895 - 308,895 - - -Due from related parties

24            601,111,088 - 601,111,088 - - -Other receivables

26              98,221,298 - 98,221,298 - - -Bank balances

                              -      11,208,113,725      11,208,113,725                               -                              -                              -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Liabilities against assets subject

10                              -            434,571,549            434,571,549                               -                              -                              -to finance lease

       4,450,000,000        4,450,000,000 9                               -                              -                              -Long term finances

14                              -        1,136,809,987        1,136,809,987                               -                              -                              -Trade and other payables 

13                              -        4,991,083,521        4,991,083,521                               -                              -                              -Short term borrowing

15                              -            195,648,668            195,648,668                               -                              -                              -
Accrued profit / interest 
/ mark-up

Note  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

2018

Loans and 
receivables

Financial liabilities 
at amortized cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Carrying amount Fair value

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date (level 1).

- Inputsother thanquoted prices included withinLevel 1 that are observable for theasset or liability, either directly or
indirectly (level 2).

- Unobservable inputs for theasset or liability (level 3).

41.2.1 Fairvaluemeasurement of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments and non-financial 
instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:
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Note

On-Balance sheet financial instruments
31 December 2017

Financial assets not measured at fair value

             99,271,369 - -Security deposits 99,271,369 - -

22            129,704,758 -Trade debts 129,704,758 -- -

23                3,575,796 -Due from employees 3,575,796 -- -

25                1,093,586 - -Due from related parties 1,093,586 - -

24            388,487,989 - -Other receivables 388,487,989 - -

26        1,195,301,690 - -Bank balances 1,195,301,690 - -

1,817,435,188 - -1,817,435,188 - -

 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

2017

Loans and 
receivables

Financial liabilities 
at amortized cost

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Liabilities against assets subject

                              -        6,812,771,168        6,812,771,168                               -                              -

10to finance lease                               -            141,637,760            141,637,760                               -                              -                              -

9Long term finances                               -        4,450,000,000        4,450,000,000                               -                              -                              -

14Trade and other payables                               -            698,258,976            698,258,976                               -                              -                              -

13Short term borrowing                               -        1,449,501,368        1,449,501,368                               -                              -                              -

Accrued profit / interest / 
mark-up 15                              -              73,373,064              73,373,064                               -                              -                              -

                              -

41.2.2 Fair value versus carrying amounts

The Company has not disclosed the fair valuesof these financial assetsand liabilities as these are for short term or reprice
over short term. Therefore, their carrying amountsare reasonable approximation of fair value.

41.3 Capital riskmanagement

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to
support thesustaineddevelopment of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, theCompanymay adjust theamount of
dividend paid to shareholdersand / or issuenew shares.

There was no change to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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42 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities.

Long term 
finances

Short term 
borrowings

Liabilities
against assets 

 subject to 
finance lease

Accrued
finance

cost

 Unclaimed 
dividend

 Share capital / 
share premium 

Equity Total

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

2018

Liabilities

Long term 
finances

Short term 
borrowings

Liabilities
against assets 

 subject to 
finance lease

Accrued
finance

cost

 Unclaimed 
dividend

 Share capital / 
share premium 

Equity Total

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

2017

Liabilities

- 166,016,779 3,899,251,334 49,716,962 973,104 3,287,790,123 7,403,748,302Balance as at 01 January 2017

Cash flows

-

-

-

-
-

-

-

-
-

-
(2,925)

(2,925)

-

-

-
-

-

4,450,000,000

-
-

-
-

4,450,000,000

- 3,921,622,704 3,921,622,704

- 4,450,000,000

- (1,800,439,755) (1,800,439,755)
(37,167,119) (37,167,119)

- (374,689,427) (374,689,427)
- (2,925)

(37,167,119) (1,800,439,755) (374,689,427) 3,921,622,704 6,159,323,478

Share capital issued - net of expenses
Receipts from long term finances
Short term borrowings repaid net of receipts
Repayment of finance lease liabilities
Finance cost paid
Dividends paid

970,179

398,345,529

398,345,529

73,373,064

12,788,100

-

12,788,100

141,637,760

- - (649,310,211) (649,310,211)
- - 12,788,100

- - 398,345,529

- (649,310,211) (238,176,582)

Change in running finance
New finance leases
Interest expense
Total non-cash changes

Closing as at 31 December 2017 4,450,000,000 1,449,501,368 7,209,412,827 13,324,895,198

4,450,000,000 141,637,760 1,449,501,368 73,373,064 970,179 7,209,412,827 13,324,895,198

-
-

-

-
-

-
(89,904,038)

-

-
(89,904,038)

349,999,476
-

-

-
349,999,476

-
-

(552,521,110)

-
(552,521,110)

-
-

-
(4,427)

(4,427)

-

-

-
-

349,999,476
(89,904,038)

(552,521,110)

(4,427)
(292,430,099)

Short term borrowings repaid net of receipts
Repayment of lease rentals
Finance cost paid
Dividends paid

-

-
-

-

4,450,000,000

-

-
382,837,827

382,837,827

434,571,549

3,191,582,677

-
-

3,191,582,677

4,991,083,521

-

674,796,714
-

674,796,714

195,648,668

-

-
-

-

965,752

-

-
-

-

7,209,412,827

3,191,582,677

674,796,714
382,837,827

4,249,217,218

17,281,682,317

Changes in running finance
Finance cost
Assets acquired on lease
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43 Date of authorization of issue

These financial statements havebeen authorized for issue by theBoardof Directorsof theCompanyon 29 January, 2019.

44 Events after the reporting date

There are no subsequent events occurring after reporting date.

45 Corresponding figures

Corresponding  figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison and 
better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification has been made.
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Proxies, in order to be effective must reach the Company's Registered office not less than 48 hours 
before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. Proxies of 
the Members through CDC shall be accompanied with attested copies of their CNIC.

SECP's Circular No. 1 dated January 26th, 2000 is on the reverse side of the form.

Note:

FAUJI FOODS LIMITED 

FORM OF PROXY Registered Folio No./ 
CDC Account No.

I/We

of

of

or failing him

of

As witness my hand this.                                                                 Day of 2019.

(NAME)

(NAME)

(Address)

(NAME)

(Address)

being a member of FAUJI FOODS LIMITED , hereby appoint

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature Signature

Name Name

Address Address

Signature of Shareholder / Appointer
Revenue

Stamp
Rs. 5/-

CNIC # CNIC #

(Address)

(also being a member of the Company) asmy/ our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/ usand on my/ our behalf,
ndat the 52 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Pearl Continental Hotel, Lahore on

Wednesday, March 27, 2019 at 11:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
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2019
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